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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

HITESHES

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Capital VC
Limited (carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), it is my
pleasure to present you the Group’s audited annual results for the
year ended 30 June 2011.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a negative
turnover of HK$1.0 million (2010: positive HK$23.3 million) and
net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$23.4
million (2010: HK$36.0 million).

During the year, the Group continued to diversify our investment
portfolio and increase our resources in listed investments with better
liquidity.

As affected by the fragile global investment environment since
the second quarter of 2011, the Group recorded a net loss on
financial assets at FVTPL of HK$2.3 million in the current year. The
bullion market was, however, an opposite of the performance of
global equity market. The ascending bullion price led to keen bullion
trading activities during the year. As a result, the performance of
the Group’s associate, CNI Bullion Limited, was outstanding and its
profit shared to the Group of HK$41.7 million was adequate to cover
the fair result in the equity investments of the Group.

The net proceeds from a placement, a rights issue exercise and
exercise of share options totalling HK$86.6 million enlarged the
capital base during the year. Together with the total comprehensive
income for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$8.1 million and increase of reserve of HK$2 million due to
grant of share options, the net asset value of the Group increased by
30.5% from HK$317.4 million as at 30 June 2010 to HK$414.1 million
as at 30 June 2011.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

During the year under review, the global economic recovery
continued during the first three quarters. To enhance our capital
and shareholder bases, improve the Group’s competitiveness as
well as participate in diversified high quality projects, the Company
underwent a placement and a rights issue exercise during the year.
The Company successfully placed approximately 64.9 million shares
at HK$0.35 per share in December 2010 and approximately 194.7
million shares were allotted and issued at HK$0.3 each in March
2011 by way of rights issue. Gross proceeds of approximately
HK$81.1 million were obtained from the above fund raising
exercises.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

YITESHES

The investment environment, however, has changed drastically
since the last quarter. A series of unfavorable events happened,
and the European debt crisis became the main theme of the global
investment market. Another focus in the market was the uncertainty
of US government credit rating downgrade, which was subsequently
realized in August 2011. Due to the worsening of the investment
environment, the Group recorded a slight loss on financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$2.3 million,
which represented only 1.4% of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$165.9 million as at 30 June 2011.
In addition to the listed investments mentioned above, the valuation
of an available-for-sale investment — Quidam Assets Limited was
also adversely affected by the uncertainties in the market. To react
to the volatile investment market, the Group changed the portfolio
combination. Listed investments with higher liquidity carried more
weight in the portfolio.

Looking forward, we expect the economic growth of the US
and Europe will slow down. Market risk aversion is likely to grow
fuelling bigger market uncertainty and volatility, the developed and
developing markets alike. However, the promise by the US Federal
Reserve to keep interest rates low for two more years is favorable to
the equity investments. Another positive factor is that the Chinese
Government may be less hawkish to further tighten the current
macro policy in the near term. The Directors will adopt cautious
measures to manage the portfolio of investments of the Group.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our
gratitude to all management team and staff members for their
dedication and contribution in the past year. We would also like to
extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to our shareholders and
business partners for their continued support to as well as their
confidence in the Group.

Yau Chung Hong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 September 2011
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Chung Hong, aged 41, obtained a Bachelor degree
in Accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Yau possesses extensive experience and
knowledge in accounting and financial management. Mr. Yau is
also an independent non-executive director of Freeman Financial
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 279) and Radford Capital
Investment Limited (Stock Code: 901), the securities of which are
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan, aged 42, holds a Bachelor of
Science degree (Applied and Engineering Physics) and a Master
of Engineering degree (Operations Research and Industrial
Engineering) from Cornell University U.S.A. Mr. Chui is an
experienced investor and business manager for direct investment
and private equity ventures in Asia. He previously held positions
at management consulting firms, Andersen Consulting and A.T.
Kearney, as well as a venture capital firm, Transpac Capital Group,
which focused on private equity investments in Asia, where Mr. Chui
specialised on the consumer products, hospitality industry, as well
as telecommunications, media and technology sectors. Mr. Chui
is also an executive director and the CEO of China Private Equity
Investment Holdings Limited, whose securities are listed on AIM
board of the London Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kong Fanpeng, aged 43, obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in Finance and Auditing from Zhongshan University, the PRC. Mr.
Kong was a manager of Huizhou TCL Information System Limited
and Guangzhou Bada Telecommunications Limited. He also worked
as the general manager of the PRC market and an executive director
respectively at Chief Securities Limited in Hong Kong and Excalibur
Securities Limited in Hong Kong, specializing in risk averse
arbitrage trading in both Shenzhen and Hong Kong capital market.
Mr. Kong has a wealth of experience in the Hong Kong securities
market for over 10 years and is well versed in investment in the
second board market. Mr. Kong is currently the chairman and an
executive director of Shenzhen Wansheng Investment Management
Company Limited.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
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Dr. Liu Ta-pei, aged 60, graduated from Chung-Hsing University
in Taiwan. After graduation, he continued his studies in Cheng-Chi
University, Taiwan and the University of Southern California, U.S.A.
and obtained Master of Science and MBA degrees respectively. He
was then conferred his Doctoral degree in public administration from
the University of La Verne, U.S.A. Apart from his strong educational
background, Dr. Liu has been active in the financial field for more
than 20 years. He had been the director respectively of Universal
Chinese Securities Finance Co. Ltd., Chung-Hsin Bill Co. Ltd., and
Central Investment Holding Company and the chairman of Jen Hua
Investment Holding Company. Dr. Liu had also served as CEO of
Taiwan KMT (Ruling Party) Business Investment Committee and
had served the board of China Development Industry Bank, one of
the top management of Taiwan’s largest Investment Banks. Dr. Liu
had been the CEO and an executive director of the Core Pacific-
Yamaichi Group. Because of his outstanding contribution in the
financial field, Dr. Liu was granted the honour of ‘Golden Peak
Award of Outstanding Corporation Leaders in Taiwan’ in 1998, and
was ranked as one of the ‘Top Ten Intelligent Financial Personnel in
Greater China’ and was conferred the ‘Best Integrity Award’ in 2008.
Dr. Liu is a non-executive director of Rocklands Richfield Limited, a
company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Hung Cho Sing, aged 70, has over 30 years of experience
in the film distribution industry and founded Delon International
Film Corporation in 1970. He has been the chairman of Hong Kong
Kowloon and New Territories Motion Picture Industry Association
Limited since 1991 and was the chairman of Hong Kong Film
Awards Association from 1992 to 1995. Mr. Hung was appointed
by the HKSAR Government as a member of the Hong Kong Film
Development Council since 2007. He was also appointed as a
director of the China Film Association since 2009.

Mr. Hung is also a member of HKSAR Election Committee
and a vice-chairman of the Cultural Profession Committee of the
Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion Council.
Mr. Hung was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the
HKSAR Government in 2005 in recognition of his contribution to the
Hong Kong Film industry. Mr. Hung is an independent non-executive
director of China Star Entertainment Limited (stock code: 326).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Kwan, aged 42, obtained a Bachelor degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Lam is currently a director of Charles H.C. Cheung & CPA Limited.

Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan, aged 39, graduated from
the University of New South Wales, Australia with a Bachelor of
Commerce degree in Accounting and Computer Information System.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of Certified Public Accountants,
Australia. Mr. Chan is currently an associate director of Go-To- Asia
Investment Limited. Mr. Chan is also an independent nonexecutive
director of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
(Stock code: 747), whose securities are listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and of China Data
Broadcasting Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8016), whose securities
are listed on the GEM board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Mr. Shiu Siu Tao, aged 47, obtained a postgraduate degree
in finance from the HEC School of Management (Hautes Etudes
Commeciales) in Paris, France and a bachelor of business
administration degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Shiu has close to 20 years of experience in the corporate finance
field that covers a wide array of industries. He is currently a Senior
Vice President of DBS Asia Capital Limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group reported a negative
turnover of HK$1.0 million (2010: positive HK$23.3 million) and
net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$23.4
million (2010: HK$36.0 million). During the year, the Group managed
to dispose of some direct investment projects and re-allocate our
financial resources to our listed equities portfolio as well as several
more matured technology investments.

As at 30 June 2011, the net asset value (“NAV”) of the Group
was approximately HK$414.1 million (2010: HK$317.4 million), an
increase of 30.5% over the same period in 2010. The NAV per share
of the Group was HK$0.7005 (2010: HK$1.0074).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continued to maintain a healthy statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2011. The Group’s bank balances amounted
to HK$14.5 million (2010: HK$26.2 million) which accounted for
4.1% (2010: 10.6%) of the Group’s total current assets. The Board
believes that the Group has sufficient resources to satisfy its
working capital requirements.

Capital Structure

Following a placement and a rights issue exercise, 64,910,000
shares at HK$0.35 each and 194,746,089 shares at HK$0.30 each
were allotted and issued on 22 December 2010 and 23 March
2011, respectively. In addition, 16,431,580 shares were alloted and
issued upon exercise of share options during the year. Accordingly,
the number of issued shares of the Company increased from
315,082,177 as at 1 July 2010 to 591,169,846 as at 30 June 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEER W& D

Capital Commitment

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had no material commitment.

Contingent Liabilities
Details of contingent liabilities of the Group during the year are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

The Group has a number of investment projects in the PRC
and may be subject to a certain degree of investment return risk.
In spite of this, the Board believes that foreign exchange risks are
minimal as the Group mainly uses Hong Kong dollars to carry out its
business transactions.

Human Resources

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had 2 employees excluding
the Directors. Total staff costs excluding Directors’ remuneration
amounted to approximately HK$548,000. They perform clerical,
research, business development and administrative functions for
the Group. The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the
prevailing market practice and the staff remuneration is determined
on the basis of the performance and experience of individual
employees.

Significant Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries
During the year under review, the Group had not made any
significant acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries.

Charge of Assets

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had pledged plant and equipment
of approximately HK$77,000 to secure the finance leases and
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$161,592,000 to
secure the margin payables.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERWE

The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
with emphasis on transparency, independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate
governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) issued
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in
its Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) sets out two levels of corporate governance
practices, namely, mandatory Code provisions that a listed company
must comply with or explain its non-compliance, and recommended
best practices that listed companies are encouraged to comply with
but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance. The Company
is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions, save for the
deviations discussed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

At the date of this report, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors, one Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Board has appointed Committees to
oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs. The composition of
the Board and the Committees are given below and their respective
responsibilities are discussed in this report.

The number of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings
attended by each Director during the year under review is set out in
the following table. Figure in brackets indicates maximum number of
meetings in the period in which the individual was a Board Member
or Committee Member (as the case may be).
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Name of Director Board
Esns Ezg
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Yau Chung Hong ERMEE 14/(16)
Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan hERELE 16/(16)
Mr. Kong Fanpeng LAHEEE 3/(8)
Dr. Liu Ta-pei B REMEL 4/(8)
Independent Non-executive Directors VHBITES

Mr. Lam Kwan mOEEE 4/(4)
Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan PREEIZEE 3/(4)
Mr. Shiu Siu Tao BOELE 4/(4)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing their
independence from the Company in accordance with the guidelines
on director independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the

Company considers all such Directors to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are set out on pages 5 to 7 of this annual report.
Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and
expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to protect the
interests of the Group and the shareholders. The Board will review
its composition regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate
balance of expertise, skills and experience to continue to effectively
oversee the business of the Company.

The Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective
duties and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s
performance and current market situation. Details of emoluments of
the Directors from the Group for the year are disclosed in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Audit Remuneration Investment
Committee Committee Committee
EREBES® FMzEg REZE®
N/ATE A N/AZ & 6/(6)
N/AT i N/AT & F 6/(6)
N/AT3E N/AT 3 6/(6)
N/AT & N/AT1E F 5/(6)
2/(2) 0/(0) N/ATiE A

1/(2) 0/(0) N/AT7E

2/(2) 0/(0) N/ATiE

BESERECHLREME  EK HEWR
HthEXR HEBER SR IFHTEZEREL
TRAKNESH UM 255  EEBEAELBULM
Hit  ARBARBZEESEERHLAL -

RABEAH  AAAESZBEAERFER
AERFSEEETH ENEZS2HRARTES
ZHEE BRNEXANE ESSHEHERBCH
REBRERAZER  UREXEENRRZF

ESENEHRTHEER  UBEREEEEHA
WoRERERTHESSECFE  ENEESR
MUEENR 2% -

ESFWNISERESRALAZBE A2
AZRAREANTRRAEE - EERAFEQAKE
WELZ B £ FIEHREGRE B HRRMEES -

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #1843 FR 2 ]
Annual Report 2010/11 %

1



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERWE

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The appointment of new Directors is recommended by the Board
of Directors. The Board will then take into account criteria such as
expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when considering a

new appointment.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(“Articles”), all Directors except the Chairman and/or Managing
Director are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company. New Directors appointed
by the Board during the year are required to retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the first annual general meeting
immediately following their appointments. Further, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors excluding the Chairman
and/or Managing Director, or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third are
required to retire from office.

The existing Articles governing the retirement of Directors
deviate from the Code provisions in the following aspects: (i) unlike
the other Directors, the Chairman and/or Managing Director is not
subject to retirement by rotation; (ii) new Directors appointed at
the first annual general meeting instead of the first general meeting
after their appointments; and (iii) the Directors who are subject to
retirement by rotation are not explicitly subject to retirement at least
once every three years.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same person. The Company does not have a Chairman or Chief
Executive, and decisions are made collectively by the Executive
Directors. The Board believes that the present arrangement enables
the Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus
achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently and effectively in
response to the changing environment. The Board also believes that
the Company already has a strong corporate governance structure
in place to ensure effective oversight of management. The Board will
continually review the effectiveness of the Group’s are necessary.

12 CAPITAL VC LIMITED # #B £ # 4 BR 2 ]
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TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Currently all Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Nonexecutive Directors) have no specific term of appointment but
they are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles. As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to serve the purpose of this Code provision.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three Independent
Nonexecutive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwan, who
possesses extensive financial and accounting experience in
commercial sectors. It is responsible for appointment of external
auditors, review of the Group’s financial information and oversight
of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
them to the Board for approval. It meets regularly to review
financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has
unrestricted access to personnel, records and external auditors and
senior management.

The Committee has specific written terms of reference which are
of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in Code Provision.
In the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
At the meetings, it reviewed the final results for the year ended
30 June 2010 and the interim accounts for the six months ended
31 December 2010 respectively and the internal control structure.
It also reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the
corporate governance requirements as set out in the Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee, comprised all three Independent
Non-executive Directors, is responsible for reviewing and
determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors and
senior management. The committee members elect one of them
to take the chair at the commencement of each meeting. The
Committee has specific written terms of reference which are of no

less exacting terms than those stipulated in Code Provision.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee, comprised all four Executive
Directors, is responsible for formulating investment policies and
reviewing and determining the investment portfolio of the Group.
The committee members elect one of them to take the chair at the

commencement of each meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring such
accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Company’s
accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
system of internal control includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to oversee
the Group’s operational systems for the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company appointed Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditor
of the Company on 8 September 2009 following the resignation
of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited on 1 September 2009. In the
year ended 30 June 2011, total remuneration paid to the auditors
was HK$580,000 (2010: HK$520,000), being HK$450,000 (2010:
HK$420,000) for audit and HK$130,000 (2010: HK$100,000) for other
professional service.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on page 22 and page 23.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-compliance with
the Model Code during the year and they all confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to
enhance such communications, the Company provides information
relating to the Company and its business in its interim and annual
reports.

The Company regards its annual general meetings as an
opportunity for direct communications between the Board and
its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and external
auditors make an effort to attend the annual general meetings to
address shareholders’ queries. The Company also responds to
requests for information and queries from the shareholders and
investors and welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management direct.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEERE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to
present the annual report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 30 June 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investing in listed and
unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2011 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 24 to 103. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2011.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30 June 2011
amounted to HK$236,074,853 (2010: HK$175,670,342), calculated in
accordance with the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate to conform with
current year’s presentation, is set out on page 104.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 30 September 2003 are set out in note 30(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the share options granted and the share options
outstanding as at 30 June 2011 are set out in note 30(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yau Chung Hong

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan
Mr. Kong Fanpeng

Dr. Liu Ta-pei

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hung Cho Sing (appointed on 15 September 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kwan

Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan

Mr. Shiu Siu Tao

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Hung Cho Sing
shall retire in accordance with Article 87(3) of the Company’s articles
of association, while Mr. Lam Kwan and Mr. Shiu Siu Tao shall retire
by rotation in accordance with Article 88(1). Mr. Hung Cho Sing and
Mr. Lam Kwan, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
thereat. Mr. Shiu Siu Tao, though eligible, will not offer himself for
re-election thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

As at 30 June 2011, none of the Directors have entered into
any service agreement with any member of the Group which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2011, the Directors and chief executives of the
Company and their associates had the following interests in the
Shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”):

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of director Nature of interest

EEpE ERME
Yau Chung Hong (Note) Beneficial owner/ Long
BB (B EE) Interest in a controlled HE

corporation
BEREEAS
SEEEER

Note: Mr. Yau Chung Hong, an executive director of the Company, was
personally interested in 117,680,000 shares and deemed to be
interested in 13,465,000 shares by virtue of his control in Sellwell

Enterprise Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2011, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company or their associates
had any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED # #B £ # 4 BR 2 ]
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2011, the interests of substantial shareholders
(other than the Directors or chief executives) in the Shares or
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

REREHE EmtE

Longlife Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long
BOREEZERERA A BREEA Ha
Cheuk Wai Yin Beneficial owner Long
2RE BERBEAA Ha
Lai Suk Yin Beneficial owner Long
FENE BERBEAA HE

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2011, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director, the chief executive or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Long/short positions

B RR
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts (not being contracts in the ordinary
course of business) were entered into by the Company during the
year, which are or may be material:

1. A placing agreement was made between the Company and
Global Broker Services Limited on 1 December 2010 for
placing 64,9100,000 new shares of the Company under a
general mandate at a placing price of HK$0.35 per share.

2. An underwriting agreement was entered into between the
Company and Radland International Limited (as underwriter)
on 11 January 2011 relating to a rights issue of not less than
194,746,089 and not more than 212,875,197 new ordinary
shares of par value of HK$0.10 each in the Company.

3. A placing agreement was made between the Company
and Chung Nam Securities Limited (as placing agent) and
Willie International Limited (as subscriber) on 9 June 2011
for placing 250,000,000 new shares of the Company to the
subscriber at a placing price of HK$0.30 per share under a
specific mandate.

Save as disclosed, no other material contract (not being contract
entered into in the ordinary course of business) was entered into by
any member of the Group during the year.

LITIGATION

As at 30 June 2011, none of the members of the Group is
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors or
the Company to be pending or threatened by or against any member
of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The note to the consolidated financial statements under “Related
and Connected Party Transactions” disclosed the continuing
connected transactions. The continuing connected transactions
under this section were exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Details of subsequent events of the Group are set out in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
have been audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited. Cheng & Cheng
Limited retires at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offers
itself for reappointment. A resolution for reappointment of Cheng &
Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chui Tak Keung, Duncan
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 September 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M A% B R

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
wowm o out WoF OB A R A A

10/F, Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
EREFELITBI38RBAaBERE10E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CAPITAL VC LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Capital
VC Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 24 to 103 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2011, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibilities for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WA IR

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2011
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Sum Steven
Practising Certificate Number: P03747

Hong Kong, 30 September 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

el

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

2011 2010

—E——F —E2-FF

Notes HK$ HK$

K&t BT BT

(Restated)

(E%)

Turnover —E 2 7 (984,164) 23,255,411
Other income HAtb g A 9 1,417,828 2,540,062
Administrative expenses THEHR (13,981,443) (12,360,234)

Reversal of impairment loss recognised [5] $3% EL 4ib & UK BR X
in respect of other receivables Z B EEE 21 - 2,500,000
Net loss on disposal of HEAHBEERE

available-for-sale investments BB - (2,581,220)
Loss on written off of plant and equipment AHERERREZERE (152,233) -
Operating (loss) profit 2iE (FBE) 2R (13,700,012) 13,354,019
Finance costs A& B AN 10 (4,603,410) (2,135,301)
Share of results of an associate FE{hE & N R A 17 41,674,842 24,290,040
Profit before tax BRI AT 2R 11 23,371,420 35,508,758
Income tax FrS 12 - 461,433
Profit for the year REEEF 23,371,420 35,970,191
Dividend Be 13 - -
Earnings per share - basic FRER-BER 14 0.0558 0.0969
— diluted — 58 N/ATE A N/AT i A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEHEkE

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

2011 2010
—E——F —ZE-ZF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit for the year attributable to AATEERREMREEEF
equity holders of the Company 23,371,420 35,970,191
Other comprehensive (loss) income Hit2m (E18) Kz
(Loss) gain on fair value changes of AHEEREZARE
available-for-sale investments ZE) (F518) W& (15,305,087) 1,309,519
Transfer from investment revaluation REEAHEERERH
reserve on disposal of REEMHFEHEEA
available-for-sale investments - 2,581,220
Other comprehensive (loss) income BREgz2AFEHMETR (BE) e
for the year, net of tax (15,305,087) 3,890,739
Total comprehensive income A T RS IR R R 4L
for the year attributable to 2HRRERE
equity holders of the Company 8,066,333 39,860,930
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR &

At 30 June 2011 R=F——%XA=+H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Notes HK$ HK$
HiaE BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment K& 16 1,416,802 987,277
Interest in an associate REEE N R 2w 17 91,013,434 49,338,592
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 36,000,000 58,249,017
128,430,236 108,574,886
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 70,000,000 63,056,070
Financial assets at fair value EAARERRERAEE
through profit or loss ZHBEE 20 165,882,076 56,632,226
Loan receivables FEWE R FIE 18 10,000,000 10,000,000
Prepayments, deposits and other FEARE - ZEREAM
receivables FE W k1B 21 45,775,027 58,948,774
Amounts due from investee companies EWEZBRENTRE 22 716,808 2,313,060
Amount due from an associate FE Uk Bg = N\ B FRIE 17 44,125,000 30,220,000
Bank balances R IT AR 23 14,486,942 26,219,940
350,985,853 247,390,070
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HihESRIERETEH 24 62,578,201 35,384,873
Amounts due to directors ERESEFIE 25 2,222,418 1,101,884
Amounts due to investee companies EBAESRENTRIE 26 49,639 =
Tax payable PSR - 568,702
Debentures BRERE 27 - 1,000,000
Obligations under finance leases Al E A ARIE
—due within one year ——FREH 28 195,041 452,906
65,045,299 38,508,365
Net current assets REBEEFEE 285,940,554 208,881,705
414,370,790 317,456,591
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR &

At 30 June 2011 R=F——4XA=+H

2011 2010
—E2——F —ZE-EF
Notes HK$ HK$
K&t BT BT
Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital [N 29 59,116,985 31,508,218
Reserves #1E 354,971,454 285,890,657
Total equity attributable to equity holders KRB REFE AEL
of the Company AR 414,088,439 317,398,875
Non-current liability FRBEE
Obligations under finance leases RMEBENEE
—due after one year ——F & H 28 282,351 57,716
414,370,790 317,456,591
Net asset value per share BEREEFE 31 0.7005 1.0074

The consolidated financial statements on pages 24 to 103 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30

September 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yau Chung Hong
B8
Director

EZE

HNF24BEZ103E 2R BRRENR =T ——
EANR=TEREESSHERBSERT  AHUT

R&R%EF:

Director

EE

Chui Tak Keung, Duncan
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF €HANGES IN EQUITY
GAREEDR

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANIRBERAARLER
Share Investment
Share Share option revaluation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
RA& Kt aE BRERRE REERRE ZitE R st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT B B B
At 1 July 2009 RZEENELR-B 25,782,218 220,557,290 - 52,147,348 (36,549,658) 261,937,198
Profit and total recognised income FEERFIRCRANGEE
for the year - - - - 35,970,191 35,970,191
Gain on fair value changes of AfLERE
available-for-sale investments ZANEZBET
(Note 19) (H3t19) - . m 1,300,519 - 1,300,519
Transfer to consolidated income REETHEERERES
statement on disposal of GalEx
available-for-sale investments - - - 2,581,220 - 2,581,220
Share option scheme (Note 29(c)) : BRET & (f2290))
—value of service -REEE - - 1,369,976 - - 1,369,976
—proceeds from share issued -BRTRAMENE 570,000 1,881,000 = = - 2,451,000
~transfer to share premium ERARMEE - 116,916 (116,916) - - -
Issue of ordinary shares by placing NEERRBTEER
(Note 29(b) (H291t) 5,156,000 7218400 . § - 12,374,400
Share issue expenses RARTER - (594,629) - o - (594,629)
At 30 June 2010 R-E-ZEXB=1H 31,508,218 229,178,971 1,253,060 56,038,087 (579,467) 317,398,875
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAERRBR

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANIRBERAARLER
(Accumulated
Share Investment losses)
Share Share option revaluation  Retained profits
capital premium reserve reserve (BiHER) Total
B RAEE BRERE REE(RE REEH b
HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS
B BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 July 2010 R-Z-ZEtF-R 31,508,218 229,178,971 1,253,060 56,038,087 (579,467 317,398,875
Profit and total recognised income REERRIRCRANGER
for the year - - - - 23,371,420 23,371,420
Loss on fair value changes of AREEREY
available-for-sale investments MEZBEE
(Note 19) (H3t19) - - - (15,305,087) . (15,305,087)
Share option scheme (Nofe 29(d)) : ARET 8 (H229/0) -
—value of service -REEE - - 2,031,456 - - 2,031,456
—proceeds from share issued -BRTRAMENE 1,643,158 4,299,047 = - - 5,942,205
~transfer to share premium -ERARDEE - 1,253,060 (1,253,060) - - -
Issue of ordinary shares by rights issue ~ WERAAZTEER
(Note 29(7) (H290) 19,474,609 38,949,218 - - - 56,423,627
Issue of ordinary shares by placing NEERRBTEER
(Note 29(¢) (H29(e) 6,491,000 16,227,500 . - - 22,118,500
Share issue expenses RARTER = (492,757) = = = (492,757)
At 30 June 2011 R-E--FXA=1H 59,116,985 289,415,045 2,031,456 40,733,000 22,791,953 414,088,439
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FmEBEERER
For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES S
Profit before tax Br %4 A0 2 R 23,371,420 35,508,758
Adjustments for: BAEHUT FE
Depreciation of plant and equipment BERZRETE 1,028,221 1,213,359
Reversal of impairment loss recognised [0 43¢ L Ath & UK SR IE 2
in respect of other receivables REEE - (2,500,000)
Interest income FE WA (1,302,817) (2,054,150)
Interest expenses 2B 4,603,410 2,135,301
Share of results of an associate FEihEEE N R A (41,674,842) (24,290,040)
Net loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEEREZER
investments - 2,581,220
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HERE R REZWE (250,000) (73,602)
Loss on written off of plant and equipment FHBERREZER 152,233 =
Share option expenses B 2,031,456 1,253,060
Operating cash flows before movements EEESRERINLE
in working capital ReERE (12,040,919) 13,773,906
Increase in financial assets BEARERRERAEREZ
at fair value through profit or loss B 75 & = 3 N (109,249,850) (40,938,148)

ANFIE - BREREMBER

Decrease (increase) in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables FRIE R A (2 40) 14,476,564 (45,627,217)
Increase in other HihEARIERETTE R

payables and accruals 0 27,193,328 26,266,156
Cash used in operations REXEBRREES (79,620,877) (46,525,303)
Interest on bank and other borrowings EREFARAZTHEMNZRITR

wholly repayable within five years HERFE (4,552,097) (2,021,912)
Interest on obligations under finance leases  FBIEHNEIEZF S (51,313) (113,389)
Tax paid 2B IE (568,702) =

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBHRE AL BELAE
CARRIED FORWARD

(84,792,989)

(48,660,604)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERETMER

For the year ended 30 June 2011 #Z=

T——FXA=THLLFE

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES EAEZEX£BRERH FE

BROUGHT FORWARD
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in amount due from

REZH
B8R E R R IR

2011
S
HKS$

(84,792,989)

2010
—z-%5
HKS
# 7

(48,660,604)

investee companies 1,645,891 7,942,131
(Increase) decrease in amount due (48 0) Rl 2> e U B & A B FRIE
from an associate (13,905,000) 4,843,500
Decrease in amounts due from D BE R BB N B FRIE
related companies - 13,850
Purchases of plant and equipment BERMEKEE (1,609,979) (52,720)
Sales proceeds from disposal of HEAHEERE ZME
available-for-sale investments SHEFE - 56,000,000
Sales proceeds from disposal of HEMEREZEMSRIE
plant and equipment 250,000 352,796
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM RETEHRSFHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (R RA (13,619,088) 69,099,557
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7l & 5 B
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BITE LHRFJ??%?R 87,084,532 14,942,316
Repayment of debentures EiZ BEREE I (1,000,000) (10,000,000)
Expenses on issue of ordinary shares BUEERAX (492,757) (594,629)
Proceeds from finance lease R E LTS IE 600,000 =
Repayments of obligations under finance EBERMERNRERNR
leases (633,230) (848,356)
Decrease in amounts due to R FE (T BEE A R FKIE
related companies - (310,380)
Increase in amounts due to directors EINENESRIE 1,120,534 952,626
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH2HRESFER 86,679,079 4,141,577
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASHAND HRE&ERBESEZEY ORL) BNFEHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (11,732,998) 24,580,530
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FORERBEEZEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,219,940 1,639,410
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRAEERES
END OF YEAR, %8y
represented by, bank balances LURITE R 2 5 14,486,942 26,219,940
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business is Suite
7601B, Level 76, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in investing
in listed and unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new standard, amendment and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on 1 July 2010.

HKFRS (Amendments)
BB EER (BFTA)
HKFRS (Amendments)

—RER
AARREEHETMRALAEREERD
7 HRONEBHERZAERA R ([H
Frl) £ o AR T XMkt & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. E X &
EEMBUNEBNEN LT @AEA1KRERE
2 B35 T61ET7601BE °

REMBHRERUBTESY  BARARRENE
DA (BB ALE]) 2ThEEEHAAR -

=}
NG|

FEEIRRBREXEBNEIEREVRNE B
RpEARANME ((HFE]) 2 EmRFELTQ
a o

RAFMATREETEBVMBREER
((EBMBHHREER]D

RAEE  ARBEEREATIHEBEE
DERMHER BT R2R (B8
BHRELA])  ZFER -2 -—ZFLA—
ARG ZASEMBFEEER -

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009
BB HREESR

12009 2 2i 3

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010 in relation to

the amendments to HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008), HKAS 1,
HKAS 27 and HKAS 28

BB BREED (BRI A)

BT B BMBHREENEIR (R NFLEF)

BEREIEREN BB ERE27TRREF B ST ER F285%
REZ-ZFRMGETBUBREER 2 BGE

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

&R e ER 53258 (BRI A)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

w8 B RS 2RISR (BRTA)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

Rz 8

Classification of Rights Issues

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters
BRBRNE 2B &

Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS7 Disclosures

for First-time Adopters

HRBMBIREERIE15R (BRI A)

BEREMERETBUBRELERNETR

BRELRBF2ERBR

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

=B R 2RI 25% (BRTA)

HK (IFRIC) - Int 19

B (ARMBERERBEESS)- 2BF195%
HK - Int 5

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transaction
ERUREFEEUARDINT2ZRS

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
LRATEEZESHEE

Presentation of financial statements — Classification by the borrower

of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand clause

&8 -R2BER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR mRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. RAFHITRLETEBUHBHREER

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and new interpretations that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

HK - Int 5, Presentation of financial statements
—  Classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains
a repayment on demand clause

The impact of these developments is as follows:

HK - Int 5 Presentation of financial statements — Classification
by the borrower of a term loan that Contains a repayment on
demand clause In November 2010, the HKICPA issued Hong
Kong Interpretation 5, Presentation of financial statements —
classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains a
repayment on demand clause. This Interpretation is effective
immediately on issuance and sets out the conclusion reached
by the HKICPA that a term loan which contains a clause
which gives the lender the unconditional right to demand
repayment at any time should be classified as a current liability
in accordance with paragraph 69(d) of HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements, irrespective of the probability that the
lender will invoke the clause without cause.

The HK Int 5 has no material impact on the Group’s financial
statement as the interpretation was consistent with policies
already adopted by the Group.

((ERHBHREE]D @

BRESMASHEMGT ZHELBITN(EBHM
BHMELR DR ELEHFRBER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect

2. XAFAIREETEEBMBREER
((EEMBREEL ] @

KM E BB REEN T ES RS THER
on how the results and financial position for the current or BESTHEMEEREN 2B R BURRL
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented. ZRENERERTE - Bt BEFHATEHA
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment was required. o

REEIFERATRA LT S BMAEERERZ
(RAERT) # R - BRI R 2 -

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

BB B|EER (BFT)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BB S ERE15E (BF])
HKAS 12 (Amendments)
BEEERE125% (BFT)
HKAS 19 (Amendments)
BB S ER 51955 (BET)
HKAS 24 (Revised)

=B S ER 52455 (BIEFT)
HKAS 27
BEEHERE27R
HKAS 28

BB ERI5E2858
HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

=B B |EERE1R (BFT)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
BBYBREENETH (BT
HKFRS 9

=B B 7% 3R 5 2 B SRR

HKFRS 10
BBMBHELEE105
HKFRS 11
BBUBHELEANE115
HKFRS 12
BBMBHELEE125
HKFRS 13

BB R EER L1355
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 (Amendments)

BB (ARMBERELENRBEES)

—RRBE145 (1B3T)
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Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 except for the amendments to
HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008), HKAS 1, HKAS 27 and HKAS 28
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Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income?

Ht2EWHEIBR 2 25?

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets?®

EERIE : HEAEE 2 E°

Employee Benefits*

EERAN

Related Party Disclosures'’

BEALZEE

Separate Financial Statements*

¥ 37 Bt 7 R Ak

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures*

REBERAREELE 2 RE

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters®

BEERMERRIIRERERZBE B 85°

Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets®

RE-SREEZER

Financial Instruments*

E@I A

Consolidated Financial Statements*

Ra s HR R

Joint Arrangements*
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Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*
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Fair Value Measurement*
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Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

2,

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

i Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January

2011

3 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012

. Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

8 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

HKAS 24 (Revised), Related Party Disclosure, issued in
November 2009, is mandatory for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2011. Earlier application, in whole or in
part, is permitted.

The revised standard clarifies and simplifies the definition of
a related party and removes the requirement for government-
related entities to disclose details of all transaction with
the government and other government-related entities. The
amendments may not have any financial impact on the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010) adds requirements
for financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —2——4F<A=THIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates
to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the presentation of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial year
ending 30 June 2014 and that the application of HKFRS 9 will
have no material impact on the amount of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHHEE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of
the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method at 25% per annum.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR mRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHEE @
(Continued)
Plant and equipment (Continued) HER®EE (E)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in
which the item is dereognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expenses over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F < A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivates are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

A financial asset designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about

the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At the end of the reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including loan
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from an associate/
related companies/investee companies and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL
or loans and receivables.

At end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss of
financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter party;
or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loan
receivables and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFHR@
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) ERT A (&)
Financial assets (Continued) BBEE (&)
Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued) HEEEZHEEE (&)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of financial assets is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loans receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from investee companies/related companies/an associate
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When the
loan receivables, other receivables, amounts due from investee
companies/related companies/an associate are considered
uncollectible, they are written-off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the

impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables, amounts
due to directors/related companies, debentures and obligations
under finance leases are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR mRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHEE @

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amounts, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for trading of listed securities and
represents amounts receivable for interest income, dividend
income from investments in listed securities and net gain on
disposal of financial assets at FVTPL and available-for-sale
investments. It also includes the net gains (losses) on financial
assets at FVTPL.

Sale of available-for-sale securities and equity investments at
FVTPL are recognised on a trade date basis.

Dividend income from investments in listed securities including
financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment have been established.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset including financial
assets at FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recongnised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR mRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHEE @
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued) HE (8|

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity
in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other assets are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included at the end of the
reporting period as a finance lease. obligation. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to profit or loss.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR mRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHEE @

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated financial statements in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income with corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and the share premium when the options are exercised.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venturer;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member of
such an individual, or is an entity under the control or joint
control, or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F < A=THIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are

described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required

to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and other

factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i)

(ii)

Useful lives and residual values of items of plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the product
or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on
the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of
the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/
or the residual values of items of plant and equipment
are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed, at each financial year end
date based on changes in circumstances .

Estimation of impairment loss recognised in respect
of loan and other receivables

The Group determines the impairment loss recognised
in respect of loan and other receivables in respect of
advances to the debtors based on objective evidence of
impairment and historical loss experience of the individual
balance of the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Valuation of available-for-sale investments
In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar unlisted securities, the Group determines the fair
values by using valuation techniques based on information
from a variety of sources, including the latest information
of the available-for-sale investments.

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale investments
as at 30 June 2011 was HK$106,000,000 (2010:
HK$121,305,087), further details of which are set out in
Note 19.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
included debentures and obligations under finance leases
as disclosed in Notes 27 and 28 respectively, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holder of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, issue of debentures, new share issues and share
buy-back.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —2——4F<A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Categories of financial instruments

SEIA
a) EMIBE>SE

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-ZF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets BEE
Financial assets at FVTPL REARERRERAEE
2 EEE 165,882,076 56,632,226
Loan and receivables ER K EWFRE
— loan receivables —EWEFRFIE 10,000,000 10,000,000
— other receivables, net —HibEEW R IEF R 45,775,027 58,948,774
— amounts due from —-EWEZREQARNIE
investee companies 716,808 2,313,060
— amount due from —FEWREE N T8
an associate 44,125,000 30,220,000
— bank balances —RITEEBR 14,486,942 26,219,940
115,103,777 127,701,774
Available-for-sale investments B ERE 106,000,000 121,305,087
386,985,853 305,639,087
Financial liabilities b =R
Other financial liabilities at B AHIEZ
amortised cost Htm ke E
— other payables —HihBi g & & 62,578,201 35,384,873
— amounts due to investee - EfEZIREARRE
companies 49,639 -
— amounts due to directors -ENESRE 2,222,418 1,101,884
— debentures —EREE - 1,000,000
- obligations under — R E R EE
finance leases 477,392 510,622
65,327,650 37,997,379
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e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, financial assets at FVTPL, loan
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related
companies/an associate/investee companies, bank
balances, other payables, amounts due to directors/related
companies, debentures and obligations under finance
leases. Details of these finance instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

i)  Currency risk
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Accordingly, the management considers the foreign
exchange risk to the Group is not significant.

ii)  Other price risk
The Group’s available-for-sale investments and
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group
is exposed to equity security price risk. Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —2——4F<A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EHMI A @
b) Financial risk management objectives and b) MEEBREEBERBEEGE
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 75 e (4F)
ii)  Other price risk (Continued) i) HMERERERE(E)
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined UTHBRESMNDERERS B
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the ATERERERZEREE

reporting date.

In respect of the financial assets at FVTPL, the BEAARBRRERANER 28 5%
following table demonstrates the impact on profit EEMS @ TRERWAERLEHFE
before tax and equity if the quoted market price of HZBRMmELH T H5% (=ZF
the Group’s listed securities had been 5% (2010: 5%) —ZF 1 5%) » HERFATBF KA
higher/lower. 2o
Carrying Increase or
amount of decrease in Increase or
equity profit decrease
investments before tax in equity
BRAERE RR B AT 2 F fig 2<
Z BREE 32 hn =k R 2 1 hn =g R 2>
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2011 —E——F
Investments listed in REBZLEHERE
Hong Kong
- financial assets at FVTPL  — & A RERWERA
BREHBERE 165,882,076 8,294,104 8,294,104
2010 et Y-
Investments listed in REBZLEHERE
Hong Kong
- financial assets at FVTPL —RARBEBRRERA
BECHBERE 56,632,226 2,831,611 2,831,611
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations
as at 30 June 2011 in relation to each class of financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimize the
credit risk, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual financial assets at end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is
minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —2——4F<A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €@ T A @
b) Financial risk management objectives and b) MEEBREEBERBEEGE

policies (Continued)

Maturity analysis FH H 7 #7

The following table details the Group’s remaining TREFWNAEB 2B EBR=ZZT ——
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as at 30 FRA=Z+THR=ZZ—ZFXA=1H
June 2011 and 30 June 2010. The table has been drawn ZRBEHNEHER - TRIDBBEHBKE
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial BzARMRBEESREMBAS  ZZEHEE
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group is BINREREEAENAZREBH2HE -

required to pay.

As at 30 June 2011 R=—ZF——FXAB=1+H

Total

On demand/ One year contractual
within to Over undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount

CEEY: 30
RER/—FR —FEWRF BARF REREAH REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT B B
Other payables Hitt A 62,578,201 - - 62,578,201 62,578,201
Amounts due to investee companies B EZRENFE 49,639 - - 49,639 49,639
Amounts due to directors ENESHE 2,222,418 - - 2,222,418 2,222,418
Obligations under finance leases BERNAE 222,504 296,672 - 519,176 477,392
65,072,762 296,672 - 65,369,434 65,327,650

As at 30 June 2010 R=-ZE-—-ZTFEXHA=1+AH

Total

On demand/ One year contractual
within to Over  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount

BHRER
REX/ &R —EEWF BBME HERELE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Other payables HitEARE 35,384,873 - - 35,384,873 35,384,873
Amounts due to directors EEZHE 1,101,884 - - 1,101,884 1,101,884
Debentures it 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Obligations under finance leases MERLAE 479,240 58,439 - 537,679 510,622
37,965,997 58,439 - 38,024,436 37,997,379
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
c) Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively; and

—  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions as input.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group approximate their fair
values due to their immediate or short-term maturities.

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at end of the reporting
period across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instrument categorized
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are
defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments;

- Level 2 (mid level): fair values measured using
quoted process inactive markets for similar financial
instruments, or usingvaluation techniques in which
all significant inputs aredirectly or indirectly based on
observable market data; and

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is
not based on observable market data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —2——4F<A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EHMI A @
c) Fair value (Continued) c) DAREGE)

As at 30 June 2011
R=—ZE——FXxHA=1+AH

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-B F_E E=E k)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at fair value ~ BAABERBERARE 2B
through profit or loss BEE
- listed securities - EmiEH 165,882,076 - - 165,882,076
Available-for-sale financial AEHEZHKEE
assets
— unlisted, quoted securities -FLEmEEES - 106,000,000 - 106,000,000
165,882,076 106,000,000 - 271,882,076

As at 30 June 2010
R-ZE-—ZEFXA=1H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1B el E=E o]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at fair value =~ BRAABERBERANEE 28
through profit or loss BEE
- listed securities - thmEH 56,632,226 - - 56,632,226
Available-for-sale financial AHEECHEEE
assets
- unlisted, quoted securities -k EHEEES = 121,305,087 = 121,305,087
56,632,226 121,305,087 - 177,937,313
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e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

7.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable on
investments and net (loss) profit on financial assets at FVTPL
during the year as follows:

=
EEEREFEARAABRRERARE 28
BEEER)BANREKEE 2B Wk E R E N
T:

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E51)
Turnover R
Net (loss) profit on financial assets BRARERBRERAEEZ
at FVTPL B E T (5B R A (2,309,927) 21,155,138
Dividend income from investments RELMESZREWA
in listed securities 2,500 45,023
Interest income on amounts due from ERESRENTRIELZ
investee companies FE WA 805,944 1,558,150
Interest income on other receivables H{th fE U FE 2 A B WA 496,873 496,000
Interest income FE U A 20,446 1,100
(984,164) 23,255,411

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular reports reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker for decisions about resources
allocated to the Group’s business components and for the
review of the performance of those components.

The principal activity of the Group is investing in listed and
unlisted companies. The Group has identified the operating and
reportable segments as follows.

Financial assets - Investments in securities listed on

at FVTPL Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Note 3)

Investments in unlisted securities
(Note 3)

Available-for-sale -

investments
Associate - Investments in an entity which the
Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —2——4F<A=THIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

8. 7EBEHR &)
For the year ended 30 June 2011
BE-E-—-FXA=T+HLEE

Investment Investment
in financial in available- Investment
assets for-sale in an
at FVTPL  investments associate  Unallocated Total
RERAAE
REBERAERE REM
ZHBEE HERE REBELR AAE kel
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT BT B
Segment revenue palzil o (2,286,981) 1,302,817 - 1,417,828 433,664
Administrative expenses THEAR - - - (13,981,443) (13,981,443)
Segment result PBEE (2,286,981) 1,302,817 - (12,563,615) (13,547,779)
Finance costs ES-{p%N (4,445,886) - - (157,524)  (4,603,410)
Loss on written off FHEEEREE
of plant and equipment ZER - - - (152,233) (152,233)
Share of results of an associate i ENGE - - 41,674,842 - 41,674,842
Profit (loss) before tax BREAEF (FB) (6,732,867) 1,302,817 41,674,842  (12,873,372) 23,371,420
Income tax PREH - - - - -
Profit (loss) for the year AEERA(EE) (6,732,867) 1,302,817 41,674,842  (12,873,372) 23,371,420
Segment assets PBEE 166,002,753 145,216,577 135,138,434 33,058,325 479,416,089
Segment liabilities APHEE 58,503,193 49,639 - 6,774,818 65,327,650
Other segment information Hitrn HER
Depreciation of plant and RERZBERE
equipment - - - 1,028,221 1,028,221
Purchase of plant and equipment BERERRE - - - 1,609,979 1,609,979
Gain on disposal of plant HEREREZ
and equipment g - - - 250,000 250,000
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

8. 7EBEHR &)
For the year ended 30 June 2010
BE-_Z-ZFRA=THLEFE

Investment Investment
in financial in available- Investment
assets for-sale in an
at FVTPL investments associate Unallocated Total
RERDAAE
RBERAEE REA
ZHBEE HERE REKENT A E okt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue 2 Uz 21,201,261 2,054,150 - 2,540,062 25,795,473
Administrative expenses THER - - - (12,360,234)  (12,360,234)
Segment result AEEE 21,201,261 2,054,150 - (9,820,172) 13,435,239
Finance costs BEHA (1,569,009) - - (566,292)  (2,135,301)
Reversal recognised in At P IR E
respect of other receivables He R 2 |l - = = 2,500,000 2,500,000
Net loss on disposal of HETHREE
available-for-sale investments REFER - (2,581,220) - - (2,581,220)
Share of results of an associate EhgE AR EE - - 24,290,040 = 24,290,040
Profit (loss) before tax BREAEF (BR) 19,632,252 (527,070) 24,290,040 (7,886,464) 35,508,758
Income tax FriS# - - - 461,433 461,433
Profit (loss) for the year AEERA (FR) 19,632,252 (527,070) 24,290,040  (7,425,031) 35,070,191
Segment assets PHEE 57,915,461 164,477,471 79,558,592 54,013,432 355,964,956
Segment liabilities 2HEE 16,003,991 3,000,000 - 19,562,090 38,566,081
Other segment information Hitrp HEH
Depreciation of plant and RERZENE
equipment - - - 1,213,359 1,213,359
Purchase of plant and equipment ~ BERRERRE - - - 52,720 52,720
Gain on disposal of plant HEBEREZ
and equipment U 55 = = = 73,602 73,602

Given the nature of the Group’s operation is investment

holding, there was no information regarding major customers as

determined by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —2——4F<A=THIFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfilg A
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-ZF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E%)
Net sundry income HEIE U AF R 1,417,828 2,540,062
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. @8 &K 2
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest expenses on borrowings ERAEFRBHEZEEREZ
wholly repayable within five years: FMERX :
— bank overdrafts — RITEX 24,348 1,150
— debentures — EREH 81,863 451,753
— margin accounts - FRERF 4,445,886 1,569,009
- finance leases - REMREY 51,313 113,389
4,603,410 2,135,301
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit for the year has been arrived at after

charging (crediting):

1. BRBLAT & F

REBZAFERFNSHER (FIA) :

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 15) BEEME (BE15) 2,418,000 2,816,065
Staff costs =5
Salaries, allowances and He EZREREMBER
other benefits 524,984 678,168
MPF Scheme contributions RESFTEMHER 23,131 27,220
Total staff costs HE T A 2,966,115 3,521,453
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN &
- audit service — Z R 75 450,000 420,000
— other services — H bR 130,000 100,000
Depreciation of plant and equipment BEREETE
- owned assets -BEEE 654,328 399,382
— leased assets —-HEEE 373,893 813,977
Minimum lease payments under HEMERBLERNOZ
operating lease for rented premises BREHES 3,514,800 1,200,000
Gain on disposal of plant and HEME R RE 2 s
equipment (250,000) (73,602)
Loss on written off of plant and FHEBERBREZER 152,233 =
equipment
Share of income tax expense of EhEE QAR ZMERAX
an associate 6,876,348 4,007,855
Net loss on disposal of HEAHEERESE
available-for-sale investments - 2,581,220
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —2——4F<A=THIFE

12. INCOME TAX 12. FI 8%

For the years ended 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010, no
provision of Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Group did not derive any assessable
profits for the year ended 30 June 2011 and the taxable profits
for the year ended 30 June 2010 has been set off by previous
year’s loss.

REBE-Z——FXA=Z1THR=-ZE—ZFFX
B=1+BHLEFE » WERNEERRAELE BT
BHEEE  REARAREERBE=Z——F
B=+THLEFELEEEFEMEREF > M
BE-_Z-ZFRA=tHLFEZERB R
MNELHLFE2BEMMEHE -

FERZMEHEAXTEGS KER2ZRBA

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated income statement as follows: BRHRAOT ¢
2011 2010
—EB——-F —E-EF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Profit before tax KR % BT 2 A 23,371,420 35,508,758
Tax at domestic income tax rate of R M BT 15 B 22 16.5%

16.5% FEZBIE 3,856,285 5,858,945
Tax effect of share of results of an BiEBERRAEEZHBTE

associate (6,876,348) (4,007,855)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEARBRBA 2HEEZE

tax purpose (218,749) (419,934)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FAHH T H2HELE

for tax purpose 213,224 106,685
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERFREERE 2RETE 2,641,078 -
Tax effect of prior year’s tax losses AEEHATEHRKEE

utilized in this year ZRB R - (1,913,277)
Tax effect of origination and reversal R ECEERE R

of temporary differences ZERRERE 331,043 53,205
Tax effect of loss not allowed RAFHNBBABE BB E 53,467 322,231
Adjustment for over-provision AIEERERE AR

in previous years - (461,433)
Income tax income P15 % W &= - (461,433)

At 30 June 2011, the Group has unused tax losses of

R=ZZE-——FX"A=1TH XEEEXRHH

HK$53,888,928 (2010: HK$37,870,258) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

i 75 55 18 553,888,928 B L (=T — T F .
37,870,258 5t) » LUK EH AR AR T o A K
RaFRFEFEERE  HLBEDELTH
BEE - KEIVHEERTERPEE o
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13. DIVIDEND

14

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2011 (2010: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of
the Company of HK$23,371,420 (2010: profit of HK$35,970,191),
based on the weighted average number of 419,024,458 (2010
(Restated): 371,305,795) ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
due to the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. No
adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2011 and
2010 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per
share amounts presented.

Earnings per share - basic BREFN —-EXK
— diluted —#8

13. RE
EEUNFEBRTBE_E——F<A=1H
LEEZFRRE(ZZE—FF  8&) o

14. 3R & F
BEREXBADRERAQATDRERFE AE
1 B F23,371,4208 T (ZE—ZF : B A
35,970,191 T) REEREBITEBERZ
hnAE F 159 80419,024,4581% (= F — B F (&F
5l) : 371,305,7958%) 5t &

BEREBERANEGTRAMEEEHESERNY
L% AREFITZERNMEF SR M
E - BHE-Z——FR-Z-ZFXA=T1H
LEE RERBERENBENEAREGRE
REF  ANERNBRESSRELRERRA
BREEME -

Earnings per share

BRER
2011 2010
—Z2——fF —E-ZF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E%)
0.0558 0.0969

N/A FiE A N/A 7 & A

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purposes of calculating basic earnings per share for both years
have been retrospectively adjusted for the effects of the rights
issue in March 2011.
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 15. EEREREEEM
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ESE =
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven ENEERFFERZ(ZE—FF: 1LR)
(2010: nine) directors were as follows: EECHMENT :
For the year ended 30 June 2011 BE-Z——EXA=1tHLLEE

Other emoluments

Hitti ¢
Salaries,
allowances MPF
and other Performance Scheme
Fees benefits bonus contributions Total
A= 12 BEe
ik REMER gL TEIHX @it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Executive directors: HITEE .
Yau Chung Hong EBM 720,000 - - - 720,000
Chui Tak Keung, Duncan @R 720,000 - - 24,000 744,000
Kong Fanpeng A ALHE 360,000 - - - 360,000
Liu Ta-Pei K8 360,000 - - - 360,000
Independent non-executive BUHLHTES
directors:
Lam Kwan B 78,000 - - - 78,000
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan TR 3 42 78,000 - - - 78,000
Shiu Siu Tao wOE 78,000 - - - 78,000
2,394,000 - - 24,000 2,418,000
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4<A=THIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2010

15. EE RS REEEME @)

(a) EEEHS ()
BZ-_2-BEAASTHLEE

Other emoluments

Hin £
Salaries,
allowances MPF
and other  Performance Scheme
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
e 28 BES
ik AR BuRA - @it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors: BiTEE -
Yau Chung Hong EE/ 720,000 - - - 720,000
Chui Tak Keung, Duncan EETE 1,260,000 = = 24,000 1,284,000
Chow Ka Wo, Alex AR 360,000 - - - 360,000
(Resigned on 31 (R=E-2%F
March 2010) =A=+—-HEfH)
Kong Fanpeng LAHE 103,549 - - - 103,549
(Appointed on 18 (R=Z-2%F
March 2010) =BTN\BEZE)
Liu Ta-Pei ZIKE 44,516 - - - 44,516
(Appointed on 17 (R=E-ZF
May 2010) EA+LABER)
Non-executive director: FHITEE
Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth R 70,000 - - - 70,000
(Retired on 29 November (R=ZENE
2009) T-A=thBERE)
Independent non-executive BUFHITES
directors:
Lam Kwan OB 78,000 = - = 78,000
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan R 8¢ % 78,000 = = = 78,000
Shiu Siu Tao EOH 78,000 - - - 78,000
2,792,065 - - 24,000 2,816,065

No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the two years ended 30 June 2011 and 30 June
2010. No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable to any
director during the two years ended 30 June 2011 and 30

June 2010.

The remuneration of directors including the performance
bonus is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individual and market

trends.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 — 2 ——4<A=THIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Senior management’s emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2010: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of

15. EERSREEEME @)

(b) BREEEHS
FEBLEEBEHATRENS (28—
BE =) AATESE EEMSHE
HREX - HB— % (ZB—FF  WH)

the remaining one (2010: two) highest paid individual was BeHmATZBENT :
as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, allowances and other e R REMER
benefits 210,000 438,900
MPF Scheme contributions BESFTEIMERX 3,000 16,000
213,000 454,900

The emoluments of the one (2010: two) highest paid
individual fall in the following bands:

Emoluments bands i < 48 B

Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,000& 5T

—B (2% WB)BAEFALZ
UES PRTETE

Number of individuals

AB
2011 2010
—g——-% —T-%%F
1 2

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable to
any highest paid individuals (including directors and other
employees) during the two years ended 30 June 2011 and
30 June 2010.

BE-_Z——F~"A=+tRAKR=-ZE—2=
FRAZTHLMEE  BERDEAES
FALT (BEESRAMES) ZFE
HEMME  EREMARESE 2 REI
fERBERIE

CAPITAL VC LIMITED B #5844 FR 2 ] 69
Annual Report 2010/11 % $&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR EmR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F—— 4 A=THIFE

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. M= KR E

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements and fixtures equipment  Computers vehicles Total
HENELE HAREE HAZERE BN RE st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B BT B BT
COST A
At 1 July 2009 R-ZZNELA-A 1,184,360 187,821 127,807 143,530 3,938,860 5,582,378
Additions NE - 52,720 - - - 52,720
Disposals HE - - - - (1,155,435)  (1,155,435)
At 30 June 2010 R=ZB-Z5xXA=TH
and at 1 July 2010 R-Z-ZEtA-H 1,184,360 240,541 127,807 143,530 2,783,425 4,479,663
Additions NE 1,145,497 246,335 163,963 54,184 - 1,609,979
Disposals HE - - - - (1,545,425)  (1,545,425)
Written off S (1,184,360) (240,541) (112,608) (90,602) - (1,628,111)
At 30 June 2011 R-EB--%xA=1H 1,145,497 246,335 179,162 107,112 1,238,000 2,916,106
ACCUMULATED Rt E
DEPRECIATION
At 1 July 2009 R=ZZEAELA-H 490,567 122,988 73,138 74,155 2,394,420 3,155,268
Charge for the year ERHE 296,090 40,619 29,424 33,249 813,977 1,213,359
Eliminated on disposals & %44 - - - - (876,241) (876,241)
At 30 June 2010 R=Z-ZFxXA=TH
and at 1 July 2010 kR=Z-ZFtA-H 786,657 163,607 102,562 107,404 2,332,156 3,492,386
Charge for the year ERHE 501,409 72,238 43,913 36,768 373,893 1,028,221
Eliminated on disposals &k £ - - - - (1,545,425)  (1,545,425)
Eliminated on written off % 5% 84 (1,082,747) (202,633) (106,907) (83,591) - (1,475,878)
At 30 June 2011 R-EB--%XA=1H 205,319 33,212 39,568 60,581 1,160,624 1,499,304
CARRYING VALUES fRERE
At 30 June 2011 R=B--%XA=tH 940,178 213,123 139,594 46,531 77,376 1,416,802
At 30 June 2010 RZZE-ZFxXA=1H 397,703 76,934 25,245 36,126 451,269 987,277

The carrying value of assets held under finance leases

included in the total carrying value of motor vehicles of the
Group as at 30 June 2011 amounted to HK$77,376 (2010:

HK$451,269).
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 =2 ——4F<A=THIFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. REBME R R 2 s

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost of investment in an RIELMEE QT

unlisted associate Z B E KA 4,500,000 4,500,000
Share of post-acquisition results GRS 86,513,434 44,838,592
91,013,434 49,338,592
2011 2010

—E——F —_E—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amount due from an associate FE Uk B & N B 7R IE 44,125,000 30,220,000

The amount due from an associate was unsecured, interest—

free and repayable on demand.

As at 30 June 2011, the Group has interest in the following

associate:

Form of
business
Name of associate structure
BEARER EREBIN
CNI Bullion Limited Incorporated
("CNI Bullion") L B AL
mEE A EREFRDLA
(THELFEEE])

Place of
Class of incorporation
shares held and operations
B 32
BHR
PR 7 85 g
Ordinary share ~ Hong Kong
TRk EE

FEyEEATREDEER RERERER

R o

REZZB——FXA=1H  Z2EERNU B

AREEER

Percentage
Nominal value of equity
attributable

to the Group

of issued
share capital

Principal activities

r5E
2&1T 3
RAHEE A=l TEEH
HK$15,000,000 30% Provision of services
15,000,000 1T on trading of gold in

Hong Kong gold market
RRBEESTEZES
BERMRE
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e IS IRARME

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F—— 4 A=THIFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The summarised unaudited financial information in respect of

17. REFE QN R 2 & ()

AEEBE QR 2 REERTBERBZETIH

the Group’s associate is set out below: M
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,419,587 2,275,146
Bank balance R 1T 4L R 2,985,242 2,424,103
Trade and other receivables JEE Ui AR % % L At FE U K 411,190,473 209,864,585
Amounts due from shareholders FE UK RS R SR IE
other than the Group (REBEKRI) 11,798,379 12,796,106
Amounts due from parties related to FEURER R B 4L 75 £ 4R 3
CNI Bullion BEEALTFE 38,247,221 50,642,694
Total assets HMEE 468,640,902 278,002,634
Amounts due to the Group EAAREBEFIE 44,125,000 30,220,000
Bank and other borrowings BITREMER 131,984 80,000
Trade and other payables FEAS BR R ELAth FE A X 121,005,806 83,240,663
Total liabilities FEG= R 165,262,790 113,540,663
Net assets BEEFE 303,378,112 164,461,971
Group’s share of net assets REBELEE QT
of an associate EEFE 91,013,434 49,338,592
Turnover R 224,691,671 131,196,882
Profit for the year REE R F 138,916,140 80,966,799
Group’s share of results of REBEFREMN
an associate for the year B N EE 41,674,842 24,290,040
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 =2 ——4F<A=THIFE

18. LOAN RECEIVABLES 18. EWWE R NKIE
2011 2010
—E——-fF —E-FF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Term loans (Note) EHER (BFE) 10,000,000 10,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000
Analysed for report purpose IR Z DA

Current assets MENEE 10,000,000 10,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000

Note: HaF -
As at 30 June 2011, the term loan granted to Quidam Assets Limited R=ZZF—-——FxHA=1H" & FQuidam Assets
(“Quidam”) was HK$10,000,000. The term loan is unsecured, bears Limited (“Quidam” )z & #} & 5% %10,000,0007&
interest at 8% per annum for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010. T EHERAEBEARREBZE-_SE——FR=Z

—ZEFA=tTHILEFEHBEEFFREE -

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. I ERE

2011 2010
—Z2——F —E—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Unlisted investments, at fair value BRAAREYERZIELTRE
(Notes (a) and (b)) (BiaE(a) K (b)) 106,000,000 121,305,087

Analysed for reporting purposes as: TR DT

Current i 70,000,000 63,056,070
Non-current FERE 36,000,000 58,249,017

106,000,000 121,305,087

CAPITAL VC LIMITED B #5845 FR 2 ] 13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)

The movement in the change of fair value is as follows:

19. I HERE (@)

DAELB2EBBEROT :

2011 2010

—E——F —E-FF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At beginning of the year FAHE 121,305,087 175,995,568
Disposals HE - (56,000,000)
(Decrease) increase in fair values AREORD) B (15,305,087) 1,309,519
At end of the year FREER 106,000,000 121,305,087

Notes:

(@) The unlisted securities represent investments in private entities as

at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010 with details as follows:

Name

=L

Quidam Assets Limited (b) (i)

IIN Network Education (BVI) Limited (b) (ii)

UCCTV Holdings Limited (b) (iii)

Place of
incorporation
= i

FR 3L 3 B

British Virgin

Islands (“BVI”)

RERZES
BVI

REELHS

BVI
REBELEHE

Bt -

Particulars
of equity
interest held
PR A
RS

Ordinary share
EER

Ordinary share
ZiBR

Ordinary share
ZER

L The fair value was arrived at with reference to the valuation 1

carried out at the end of the reporting period by LCH (Asia-

Pacific) Surveyors Limited (“LCH”), independent valuers not

connected with the Group. LCH has appropriate qualification

and recent experience in the valuation of similar investments.

2 The fair value was arrived at with reference to the 2

subsequent disposal value (Note 36).
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(a)

FLEMBESERE_Z——FAA=+THEK=
Z-—ZFRA=THRERDBAQAT ZFEW
T:

Percentage of
equity interest

Acquisition Fair attributable
cost value to the Group
AEBEL
Wi R A RRE REB DL
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
15,267,000 36,000,000’ 18.25%
(2010:
58,249,017)
20,000,000 32,000,0002 15%
(2010:
30,360,330)
30,000,000 38,000,000 20%
(2010:
32,695,740)

DNAETDREREEBEREE B (L EMA
BATRAEMERD R ([FERT)) METRES
AzEFHE FIRTEGESEERRAETR
IHEEERREBEZER -

AREHASEE AR ZEEMMEE (HFE36) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F < A=THIFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) The unlisted securities represent investments in private entities as
at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010 with details as follows:

(i) Quidam and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
provision of factoring and guaranty services in the PRC. No
dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2011
(2010: Nil).

(ii) 1IN Network Education (BVI) Limited (“IIN Network”)
is an education content services operator to provide
comprehensive solutions for educational informatisation. No
dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2011
(2010: Nil).

(iii) UCCTV Holdings Limited (“UCCTV”) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in production of quality, cultural
advertisement. No dividend was received during the year
ended 30 June 2011 (2010: Nil).

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 30 June 2011 comprise:

19. I HERE (@)
Hiat - (78)

(b) ¥LEmEFEFEBRE=Z——FRA=+HE=
Z-ZFXRAZTHARABADRAZRE & F#15
W

() QuidamREMBATEERFERER
HRERERRE RBE=Z——F
ARAZTHLEFERILEREBEMERS
(ZZ—ZF : |) -

(ii) 1IN Network Education (BVI) Limited
(TIIN Network 1) 5 —RH B R & &
B RUHBEMZZEBRTR R
BE-Z——F"A=tHLFERYL
BURREARE (ZZ—FF 1 ) o

(iii) UCCTV Holdings Limited (TUCCTV)
RHMBARTZRBRIEEEE

HoRBEZZE——FXA=1THLEFE
A EBEEARE (22 —FF &) -

20. RARERUBRABRECMBEE

RZZ-——FXA=1H  BOAERKER

NEEBEZHKERERR :
2011 2010
—g--% —2-%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fair value: N
Listed securities held for trading BEEEzLTES
— listed in Hong Kong —-REBLE™ 165,882,076 56,632,226
The fair values of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL were REBRAABERUESRAEEZHBEEZ
determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on AREDNERAGEERTRAHEBEESRZRER
the relevant exchanges at the end of the reporting period. CZHEBEAREEE
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Particulars of the listed securities held as at 30 June

2011 are as follows:

Place of
Name Notes incorporation
=1 i L1 K 3L 3t B
Longlife Group Holdings Limited i Cayman Islands
PhREAZERERAE HEHE
Sage International Group Limited ii Bermuda
CHEREEERAA BRE
Netel Technology (Holdings) Limited ifi Cayman Islands
BB (ER)ERQE HEHE
Fairson Holdings Limited iv Cayman Islands
THERERAE HEHE
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited v Bermuda
MTT(EE)BRRA BRE
Birmingham International Vi Cayman Islands
Holdings Limited HMEHRS
HABRRERERA A
Greenheart Group Limited vii Bermuda
BREERRAH BRE
Brilliance Worldwide Holdings viii Cayman Islands
Limited HERS
EREERBRAH
Z-Obee Holdings Limited ix Bermuda
EE3:4

76 CAPITAL VC LIMITED HARAI A RA
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20. BEARERBBERANEEZMBEE

Particulars
of equity
interest held

P IR A

Ordinary share

=R

Ordinary share
EER

Ordinary share
EER

Ordinary share

EBER

Ordinary share
HER

Ordinary share
BER
Ordinary share
EER
Ordinary share

EER

Ordinary share
EBR

(%)

REB-——FAA=ZtTHEHEAZEELTRS

ZEBWT

Acquisition
cost

B B A

HK$

BT

55,915,195

88,014,297

4,147,578

6,236,503

2,978,950

4,258,000

8,956,546

930,000

3,999,540

Market value

as at 30

June 2011

R=-Z-——§

AA=TH

ZhiE

HK$

BT

54,684,135

88,563,420

2,732,160

5,684,050

2,642,250

3,278,660

3,963,280

502,440

2,097,180

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
rEEEMS
R &
Bt

22.875%

17.688%

4.342%

2.616%

0.588%

0.548%

0.475%

0.460%

0.180%
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F < A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Particulars of the listed securities held as at 30 June
2011 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of
Name Notes incorporation
£ Hfiz 1R K 3L 3t B
Kaisun Energy Group Limited X Cayman Islands

IR REEERAH HEHRS

Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited Xi Cayman Islands

HEBRMARERARAE HERS

CL Group (Holdings) Limited Xii Cayman Islands

EF(ZR)BRAE HERS

Prosperity International Xiii Bermuda
Holdings (H.K.) Limited BRE

EEEREZER (BB)ARLH

China 33 Media Group Limited Xiv
FE=ZEEEEERAA

Cayman Islands

MEHES

Kingdom Holdings Limited XV Cayman Islands
SEERBRAR HEHS

China Star Entertainment Limited XVi Bermuda
TEESBEERARA BRE

20. BEARERBRERANEEZHBEE

Particulars
of equity
interest held

P IR A

Ordinary share
EER

Ordinary share
EER

Ordinary share
EER

Ordinary share
EER
Ordinary share
EER

Ordinary share
EER

Ordinary share
EER

(%)

REB——FARA=THERZEZELHES
ZFEBWT (&)

Acquisition
cost

B B A

HK$

BT

481,162

429,000

280,000

552,788

106,500

106,941

2,859,863

CAPITAL VC LIMITED B #5845 FR 2 ] 11

Market value
as at 30
June 2011
R-B——F
AB=+1H
ZThE

HK$

BT

442,500

370,500

265,000

550,000

71,500

34,500

501

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
rEEEMS
PR 2 1 £
Bt

0.059%

0.056%

0.050%

0.016%

0.008%

0.008%

0.0001%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR EmR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F—— 4 A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20 BARERUNBRAEREZHEEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) (&)
Notes: Bt

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Longlife Group Holdings Limited (“Longlife”) (stock code: 8037)
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture,
research and development and distribution of consumer cosmetic,
health related products, capsules products, health supplement
wine and dental materials and equipment. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 June 2011. According to the
latest published financial statements of Longlife, it had net asset
value of approximately HK$146,948,000.

The Group does not have signifciant influence over Longlife and
the shareholding in this company has dropped below 20% as at the

date of this report.

Sage International Group Limited (stock code: 8082) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in operation of cemetery and
funeral services in the PRC and trading of automobile and related
accessories. No dividend was received during the year ended 30
June 2011. According to the latest published financial statements
of Sage International Group Limited, it had net asset value of
approximately HK$60,488,000.

Netel Technology (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8256)
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in trading of
telecommunication equipment and provision of long distance call
service in Hong Kong. No dividend was received during the year
ended 30 June 2011. According to the latest published financial
statements of Netel Technology (Holdings) Limited, it had net
asset value of approximately HK$902,000.

Fairson Holdings Limited (stock code: 8132) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in manufacture and sales of power and
data cords in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2011.
According to the latest published financial statements of Fairson
Holdings Limited, it had net asset value of approximately
HK$42,497,396.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0720) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the import, marketing and
distribution of cars, electrical appliances and fashion apparels.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2011.
According to the latest published financial statements of Wo Kee
Hong (Holdings) Limited, it had net asset value of approximately
HK$266,425,000.
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)

(if)

(ii)

(v)

BOREEZERERAT THIE]D (BRER
8% :8037) REAMBAREERERERHE
REEEER XEARBERTIRM KR
Bo-RBE-Z——FXRA=ZTHLFEERY
FEWEMEMR S o RIS H B RITEITI 3 2 8
Kz HEEFELNH146,948,000/ T ©

AEBHPNIBUBEALED  MARKSE
ABAEZARZRECHD ZEN20% °

CEEREERR DA (KRR : 8082) &
HEMBAREERTERBERLE RERER
BREESEREERGES - REE=F——
FRA=ZTHLEEERNTEKBEMRMRE - R
BLCEEREEERD RIS MER
* - HEEFEH 560,488,000/ 7T °

SFBERHE (ZR) BR D (RRNRSE - 8256)
FEMBAREERSEHEENARBRAE
BRERBERRYE - RBE=ZE——57xA
=t HEFERLEREEMRE - RIEEF
BRI (ER) AR A &I T 2 KR
* HEEFEFR902,000/8 7T

SFEEERBR AT REKEB AR (RENAHR
8132) TEREREZER EBEBRFEAR
HNEREREREESEREER - REZE
—E——FXA=THLEFERLEKEEM
IR 2. o AR YR EEE 12 IR G BR A R FI 3 ~ BF A
Wk HEEFEN H42,497,39658 7T ©

MET (EE) BRA T (REN 1 0720) &
HEMBAREERERE BERERFRBKEN
BEO- - mBEBRRSE REBE-Z——F X
B=THLEEERTEBEEMAR S o RIEFH
AT (EE) BRA R FRIAETI % 2 H®RE
HEEFEN$H266,425,000/ T ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 =2 ——4F<A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi) Birmingham International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2309) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in professional football
operation, apparel sourcing and trading, entertainment and media
services. No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June
2011. According to the latest published financial statements of
Birmingham International Holdings Limited, it had net asset value
of approximately HK$339,605,000.

(vii) Greenheart Group Limited (stock code: 0094) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in log harvesting, timeber processing,
marketing and sales of log and timber products. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 June 2011. According to the
latest published financial statements of Greenheart Group Limited,

it had net asset value of approximately HK$1,111,904,000.

(viii

=

Brilliance Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock code: 8312) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in garment manufacturing.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June
2011. According to the latest published financial statements of
Brilliance Worldwide Holdings Limited, it had net asset value of
approximately HK$46,127,000.

(ix) Z-Obee Holdings Limited (stock code: 0948) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the development and production of
software and solutions for mobile appliances, mobile headset
hardware, mobile headset and mobile headset components.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2011.
According to the latest published financial statements of Z-Obee
Holdings Limited, it had net asset value of approximately
HK$808,548,242.

(x) Kaisun Energy Group Limited (stock code: 8203) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the investment holding and
exploitation of coal and coal processing. No dividend was received
during the year ended 30 June 2011. According to the latest
published financial statements of Kaisun Energy Group Limited, it

had net asset value of approximately HK$60,040,000.

20. EARERRERAREZUBEE
(#&)
BaE - (A7)

(vi) AAHRRZERER2 T (RERR : 2309)
REMBRAAZTERBREEZR FEXERK
EE -RERBRBRHES REREER
B-RBE-ZE——FAA=tHLEEEARAL
BEWRAEFMRE - REAAHRRERER
NAMHHR 2B RER REERFENR
339,605,000/ Tt °

(vii) ZFREEREKELT (REN 0094) =2
MERKREA s AMINI HEREERAR
AMER RBE-T——FAA=1+HLF
R W BUE AR E - RIBEHREBTHT
B BEHE 0 HEEFELN1,111,904,0005%

JT °

(viil) ERmEZZRERA R (RENAR : 8312) RHHKT
BAREZERSREZRKRERE - REBZE
—E——EXA=1+HLEERLEKEEM
BRE - RIFSRMEZRAR A 7T E T2 = 8
Bk 0 HEEFEL46,127,00058 T °

(ix) Z-Obee Holdings Limited (B2 Z 3% : 0948)
REMBARIERSRUMHBNLEERS
REBREEMD  FTHEMF RBEHRFHKT
BHREBRER RBE-ZF——F~A=+
H 1 F B R 30 & U EVE A AR B o R #5Z-Obee
Holdings Limited & 3T 83 1 8% = B %5 3Rk - H
EEFELN £808,548,2428 7t ©

(x) slEgEREEERAARAMBAR (BRER
5% 0 8203) TERBREER KR RAKEE
RMI - RBE-ZT——FXA=THLEE
R E W BEARE - RIBEYIEEREEA
RAREHMHR2HMBERE HEEFEY
60,040,0005% T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR EmR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F—— 4 A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(xi) Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (stock code: 0309) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
cleaning and related services, the provision of medical waste
treatment services and the provision of waste treatment services.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June
2011. According to the latest published financial statements of
Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited, it had net asset value of
approximately HK$199,647,000.

(xii) CL Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8098) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of securities,
futures and options broking and trading and placing and
underwriting services. No dividend was received during the year
ended 30 June 2011. According to the latest published financial
statements of CL Group (Holdings) Limited, it had net asset value
of approximately HK$182,487,721.

(xiii

=

Prosperity International Holdings (H.K.) Limited (stock code: 0803)
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in trading of clinker,
cement and other building materials, investment of granite material
production, trading of iron ore, investment of public port and other
related facilities business in the PRC and real estate development.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June
2011. According to the latest financial statements of Prosperity
International Holdings (H.K.) Limited, it had net asset value of
approximately HK$4,510,642,000.

(xiv) China 33 Media Group Limited (stock code: 8087) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of advertising
services. No dividend was received during the year ended 30
June 2011. According to the latest financial statements of China
33 Media Group Limited, it had net asset value of approximately
HK$426,763,218.

(xv) Kingdom Holdings Limited (stock code: 0528) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of linen
yearns and flax fibres. Total dividend of HK$2,500 was received
during the year ended 30 June 2011. According to the latest
published financial statement of Kingdom Holdings Limited, it has
net asset value of approximately HK$787,321,839.
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20. BEARERBRBERNEEZMBEE

(#&)

BaE

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

L (&)

FEBAERZERERA A (BRENS 0 0309)
REMBARETERERMBERARMEER
% REEREYEERY - REEVEER
B -RBE-ZE——FXA=THLFERL
BUREMTRE - REFEBAAREERS
RARFEHAZRZHERER HEEFED
199,647,000 7T °

ER (R ERATDREME LT (REN
5% :8098) TERBREER - IRMHES - B
ERBELREEURBER BHRLE - B
BEZZ——FXA=THLEFERNLEWRE
IR R o RIEEF () BIR A 73 8 5
2Bk - HEEFEX182,487,72138 T ©

BEEBZER (FR) BRI (RERS:
0803) REMBARFTERBREER - &
#MKERHMEEMBESE  EEEMHE
ERE SRAEHE RAEEEQEEAR
HtbHEREXBERFHERR -REE-F
——F XA =+ B LEFERILEREEMDR
B RESREBRER (F8)BRABTITHT
B2 B HE - HEEF(EN4,510,642,00058

JC °

TE==EREEFRAR (RRENK% : 8087)
REMBAREERSREERREHERS
B -RBE-Z——F<AB=+HLFE
RIEPWEREMRE - REFHA==EHEEH
BROBIMHITI® 2 iEHRE - HEEFEY
426,763,218/ 7T ©

CEZRERLOAREME AR (RENAR
0528) T ERBHEMY MMM - RBE-T
——FXA=1THLFERUYE2,500% T K
B-RELEZRRBRAIIHTEZHBER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 =2 ——4F<A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. RAREBERUBRAERECHBEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) (48)

Notes: (Continued) Hiat o (#&)

(xvi) China Star Entertainment Limited (stock code: 0326) and its (xvi) FTEIZREERATREME QT (RELR
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the distribution of motion, 0326) TEREBHHEBE - BFH - EREEE

RAARER - RHRARERS - URRPE
ER - REBZE=—E——FRA=ZTHLFE
P 7 45 U B AR AT AR S, o AR R Bl 2 A A T B
2R HEEFENS2,579,956,000/8
Entertainment Limited, it had net asset value of approximately JC °

HK$2,579,956,000.

pictures and television, drama series and video rights, the
provision of post-production services and hotel services in Macau.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2011.
According to the latest published financial statement of China Star

The Group has pledged the financial assets at FVTPL of AEBERFROABRBERAEE 2

HK$161,592,136 (2010: HK$56,632,226) to secure the margin Bt 7% & £161,592,1368 T (=2 —F & :

payable granted to the Group. 56,632,226/8 T) E AR EBEERENHFREIR
FZiER e

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. AN RE - BE RHMERFIE

RECEIVABLES
2011 2010
—g--% —2-%F
HK$ HK$
BT T
Prepayments 115,192 167,028
Deposits 808,868 404,468
Other receivables H fb fE W K18 54,415,202 67,941,513
55,339,262 68,513,009
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERAREESE (9,564,235) (9,564,235)
45,775,027 58,948,774
The movement in the impairment loss of other receivables is as HEWREB2RESEEEBHUT :
follows:
2011 2010
—g——%&  -Z-%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of the year 9,564,235 12,064,235
Reversal for the year - (2,500,000)
At end of the year 9,564,235 9,564,235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The carrying amounts of prepayment, deposits and other
receivables at the end of the reporting period approximated
their fair values. As at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010, other
receivables of HK$9,564,235 were determined to be impaired.

Included in other receivables are the following advances to
independent third parties of the Group:

(a) Advance of HK$2,000,000 (2010: HK$2,000,000) to an
independent third party is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Accumulated impairment loss of
HK$2,000,000 (2010: HK$2,000,000) was provided in the
previous years, which net off to nil outstanding amount
as at 30 June 2011. During the year ended 30 June
2011, no additional impairment loss (2010: Nil) has been
recognised.

(b) Advance of HK$7,151,233 (2010: HK$7,151,233) to
an independent third party, is secured by personal
guarantee from an independent third party, bears interest
at 8% (2010: 8%) per annum and repayable on demand.
Accumulated impairment loss of HK$6,200,000 (2010:
HK$6,200,000) was provided in the previous years, which
net off to an outstanding amount of HK$1,447,233 (2010:
HK$951,233) as at 30 June 2011. During the year ended 30
June 2011, no additional impairment loss (2010: Nil) has
been recognised.

(c) Advance of HK$1,647,523 (2010: HK$1,647,523) to an
independent third party is unsecured and repayable
on demand. The loan is interest-free and repayable on
demand. Accumulated impairment loss of HK$1,364,235
(2010: HK$1,364,235) was provided in the previous years,
which net off to an outstanding amount of HK$283,288
(2010: HK$283,288) as at 30 June 2011. During the year
ended 30 June 2011, no additional impairment loss (2010:
Nil) has been recognised.

(d) Interest receivables of HK$1,301,944 (2010: HK$4,859,324)
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
During the year ended 30 June 2011, no impairment loss
(2010: Nil) has been recognised.
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21. FARE - RERH M ERKE @

RB|BERR - BARKE - REREMERKR
ZERHEHEAFEEN BEZZE——FKA
ZTHRZZ-ZFARAZTHLEEE K&
& % 219,564,235/ T 2 H L R THEEE B
ERE °

Hitb EWFEBE TG TAEEBYE=A
ZEAR

(a) BAF—UBILE=FH2E#7%2,000,000
BT (ZF—FF :2,000,00087T) * B
K REREREREERE -BEZ
Z——XRA=+tH BEFEREZZR
sTR{EE82,000,00058 T (ZE—FF :
2,000,000 7T) IWEEHBREE - REZE
—E——FXA=THLFEHB 1S\
BREHNHEFE (ZZE—ZF 1 &) o

(b) BAFBIE=FH 2BFHHNT7,151,233B T
(Z2E—FF :7,151,2338x) ' A\
F=FRHEEANER KT RFEFES
E(ZZ—ZF (8E):TE  BARERE
B -BEZZ——ExA=1H BEF
E#EE 2 25 {EE5186,200,00058 7T (=
ZT—F 16,200,000 7T) KL BRE
1,447,233%8 0 (—F — ZT 4 : 951,2338
) cRBEZZE——FX~A=1HILE
EHBE > vEBREMREEE(ZZT—

(c) BF—NBIFE=7 281,647,523
B (ZE—ZF 1,647,523 7T) »
AEERAREREREBE-EX &2
REBREREE - BHE-_ZT——F~ A8
=+H - BEFEREZRTRERSIE
1,364,235 5 (=& — & F : 1,364,235
7B IT) I8 I 20Tk £283,28858 T (=& —
T4 :283,2888B) c REZE=-ZT——&
ANAZTHLEFEERE  WEBERIEINK
BEEEB(CZE—ZF:8|) -

(d) EWEBIE=7 2R E4%1,301,94458
T (ZZE—Z5F 14,859,324 1) A EIK
B REREREREBE -RBE=F
——FRAZTHLFESRE  AEFHE
BERE(ZE-—FF §) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F < A=THIFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(e)

(9)

Margin receivables of HK$120,677 (2010: HK$1,283,234)
are generated from investment in financial assets at
FVTPL, with interest rate ranged from 0.001% to 0.003%
per annum (2010: Nil to 0.003%) for the year ended 30
June 2011.

The outstanding balance of HK$16,000,000 (2010:
HK$19,000,000) due from the purchaser of King Alliance
Resources Limited (“King Alliance”) is interest-free. The
repayment date has been extended to 15 December 2011
and the purchaser has committed to settle the outstanding
balance on or before the extended repayment date.

The outstanding balance of HK$11,693,825 (2010:
HK$17,000,000) due from the purchaser of Winwide
Management Limited (“Winwide”) is interest-free. The
repayment date has been extended to 15 December 2011
and the purchaser has committed to settle the outstanding
balance on or before the extended repayment date.

The outstanding balance of HK$12,000,000 (2010:
HK$15,000,000) due from the purchaser of Easymade
Group Limited (“Easymade”) is interest-free. The
repayment date has been extended to 15 December 2011
and the purchaser has committed to settle the outstanding
balance on or before the extended repayment date.

21. BARE - RERHEMBERKE @

(e)

®)

(h)

BE-_Z——FXA=1tHILEE  ®kH
BRARNBERBRERAREZUBEERE
¥R CHFRIRFE 21206778 T (=2 —
E 4 1 1,283,23458 1)  FFZEFH0.001
E £0.003E (== —Z : 0/£ £0.003
[E)

King Alliance Resources Limited
(IF'King Alliance ]) ¥ B X & X &
¥816,000,0008 T (=& — Z & :
19,000,000 T) RREH - EXEHE
FEEZ—_Z——F+-A+HH  BERE
A NEEZER B H S 2Bl 405 15 R E
EEREE o

Winwide Management Limited
(T'wWinwide 1) M B X sl R &8 88
11,693,8258 Tt (=& — T F
17,000,000 T) 2R EH - ERBHE
EEE—_Z——F+=-fF+HH ' BEHE
AGENELEZR B B 2 A 455 1 R E
EEREE o

Easymade Group Limited
(l Easymade |) B9 B X 14 X &k 28
12,000,000 Tt (=& — & & :
15,000,000/ 7T) 2R EM c ZR B HE
BEZE—_Z——5+=-H+HB BAE
AGERNELEER A B 2 Al 455 1 R EE
BREE ©
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM INVESTEE COMPANIES
As at 30 June 2011, the amount of HK$716,808 (2010:
HK$2,313,060) is unsecured and interest-free (2010: 8% per

annum). The amount is repayable on demand.

23. BANK BALANCES

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits of
HK$14,486,942 (2010: HK$26,219,940) at prevailing market rate.

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(a) Other payables and accruals include HK$58,503,193 (2010:
HK$16,003,991) of margin payable which are generated
from investment in financial assets at FVTPL with interest
rate ranged from 8.00% to 11.25% per annum for the year

ended 30 June 2011 (2010: 7.00% to 9.25%).

(b) Other payables and accruals of HK$3,000,000 as at
30 June 2010 represented consideration payable for
acquisition of King Alliance. The amount was fully settled

during the year ended 30 June 2011.

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on

demand.

26. AMOUNTS DUE TO INVESTEE COMPANIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on

demand.

27. DEBENTURES

The amounts at 30 June 2010 represented debentures issued
to an independent third party. The amounts are unsecured,
unlisted, interest bearing at 12% per annum and repayable
within one year. The debenture outstanding as at 30 June 2010

was fully settled during the year ended 30 June 2011.
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28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 28. BME A EE
The lease term is ranging from 3 to 5 years. For the year HEAEIESFE - HE_ZE——FEA~A=1+HL
ended 30 June 2011, the average effective borrowing rate was FE > FPHEREEZRREFI1048E (==& —
10.48% (2010: 8.33%) per annum. Interest rates are fixed at the ZTF 833E)  MEREGHNBHBEE -2
contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and HEYREEEREERTETIHABEESH
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental REZHE o
payments.
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum
payment lease payment
BREHEX NN BREEAEXNREZRE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F Z—ZET-ZTF ZZB——-F ZE-XF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Amounts payable under finance RMERNT 2 EA
leases: g
Within one year —FR 222,504 479,240 195,041 452,906
More than one year but ZR—FEFRZ
not more than five years REF 296,672 58,439 282,351 57,716
519,176 537,679 477,392 510,622
Less: Future finance charges B RREIEEH (41,784) (27,057)
Present value of lease HOEAEZRE
obligations 477,392 510,622
Less: Amount due within AR —-FREE
one year shown under 3t 51| 4E 577 &b
current liabilities BEZHE (195,041)  (452,906)
Amount due after one year —FE B HEERE 282,351 57,716

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #5845 FR 2 ] 85
Annual Report 2010/11 %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
Number of shares Amount
ROEER Eak ]
HK$
BT
ORDINARY SHARES EERER.1ETT
OF HK$0.1 EACH
Authorised: EE
At 1 July 2009 R-ZZEZNFLH—H 1,000,000,000 100,000,000
Increase during the year (Note (a)) FRIE I (Kt at(a)) 1,000,000,000 100,000,000
At 30 June 2010 and R-ZZE-_ZFFXA=THR
at 30 June 2011 R=-ZE——FX~<A=1+H 2,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHAR
At 1 July 2009 R-ZEZENFLAE—H 257,822,177 25,782,218
Issue of shares by placement LB 75 BT R B (17E (b))
(Note (b)) 51,560,000 5,156,000
Issue of shares upon exercise of HTEERERTRND
share options (Note (c)) (K1az(c)) 5,700,000 570,000
At 30 June 2010 and R-ZE—ZFXA=1+H
at 1 July 2010 ER=-—Z—ZFtHA—H 315,082,177 31,508,218
Issue of shares upon exercise of HITEEREZTRNG
share options (Note (d)): (Mtat(d)) :
7,600,000 shares on 22 September 2010 R=-Z—ZFF N H =+ = H120.422/8 T
at HK$0.422 2%477,600,000% % 19 7,600,000 760,000
1,900,000 shares on 14 October 2010 R-ZE—ZF+ATMHAK048E T
at HK$0.48 #%£171,900,000% % 19 1,900,000 190,000
6,931,580 shares on 23 March 2011 MR-ZE——F=H-1+=H10.263E T
at HK$0.263 %£176,931,580% f% 19 6,931,580 693,158
Issue of shares by placement L&A X BITRA
(Note (e)) (Ht3t(e)) 64,910,000 6,491,000
Issue of shares by rights issue DU B 5 =X AT IR 4D
(Note (f) (Bt3E() 194,746,089 19,474,609
At 30 June 2011 RZE——FX<XA=1+H 591,169,846 59,116,985
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

()

By an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 2 October 2009, the Company’s authorised share
capital was increased from HK$100,000,000 to HK$200,000,000
by the creation of an additional 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each, ranking pari passsu with the existing ordinary shares

of the Company in all respect.

Pursuant to a placing agreement signed on 27 November 2009,
51,560,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were placed at
HK$0.24 per share on 16 December 2009. The shares were issued
and allotted to not fewer than 6 placees, comprising institutional
and individual investors who are third parties Independent of and

not connected with the Group.

During the previous year, share options were exercised to
subscribe for 5,700,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the
Company, at an exercise price of HK$0.43 per share, resulting in a
total cash consideration of HK$2,451,000.

Share options were exercised to subscribe for 7,600,000,
1,900,000 and 6,931,580 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the
Company on 22 September 2010, 14 October 2010 and 23 March
2011 respectively at exercise prices of HK$0.422, HK$0.48 and
HK$0.263 per share, resulting in a total cash consideration of
HK$5,942,205.

Pursuant to a placing agreement signed on 1 December 2010,
64,910,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were placed at
HK$0.35 per share on 22 December 2010. The shares were issued
and allotted to not fewer than 6 placees, comprising institutional
and individual investors who are third parties independent of and

not connected with the Group.

Pursuant to the proposed rights issue announced by the Company
on 12 January 2011, the Company issued 194,746,089 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at an issue price of HK$0.3 per

share on the basis of one share for every two shares held.

The rights issue was completed on 23 March 2011 with gross
proceeds of HK$58,423,827 raised before deduction of incidental

share issuance expenses.

29. R & (@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

BRER-—ZZNETA-AETZREEH
AELBB2EIRBER AQAAZEER
7N 3% 3B %8 41 42 581,000,000,000 % = IR @ &
0.18xzZiEARE100,000,0005% TiE M=
200,000,000/ 7t » REMER 2RO ESHE
HAARREEBREZERE ML o

BER-ZEZAE+ AT tHBTZE
EHE A2 AR-_ZTZTAF+=-A+A
LUER0.24B TE RO RANBEBAREEH
51,560,000 37 B2 17 » ZEREABEHBR
BAREE HUABURAEEREBEAL
REMEESTE2HBEAL  BEESHER
BEoE=F-

REER - AT52E55,700,000R A A A EREE
0 1B T2 EBRZIBIREUSIR0.43E TET
fif o #8385 £ X8 52,451,000/8 T °

BRESAINR-Z—ZFFNA=-+=H - =F
—ZEF+AtTNBAR=-ZF——F=A=+=
B E1TF - L2 E57,600,0008%  1,900,000%
56,931,580 AR B REEAETZER
IR 1D - MEITEE RS R0.422 - 0.48 B TR
0.263/B T © E4E# &K {E5,942,2058 7T °

BRER-—Z-—ZSE+_A—HETZRER
BoOARAR-_ZE—ZHF+-_A=+=BH
BROBETEA IR ANBAREAGBRES H
64,910,0008% Z IR EE0.18 Tt Z ¥ R 17 » %
LRTMABERBREARES  9ABIR
AEEREBBEAISEARESEZHEA
T BHEFEEHMEREECE=R -

BEARAR=-ZE-——F-—A+-HAIMZ
ERER  AQRRBTESRIBITERT
194,746,089/% & % [ fH0.178 T 2 ¥ & B I
7 BERBEAMKRRKRDER KRG -

HRER=-F——F=A=t=A%K Mk
M RDBITRAXAMERZMETRIERER
58,423,827 T °
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. BRRAERTE
(a) Scheme (a) =t&

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 30
September 2003 (the “Adoption Date”), the directors of
the Company may, at their absolute discretion, invite any
employee (whether full-time or part time, including any
executive director), any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive directors), any supplier of
goods or services, any customer and any person or entity
that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group to the maximum of 10% of the shares
in issue as at the date of commencement of listing of
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange and subject
to renewal with shareholders’ approval.

The Scheme became unconditional upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options to any eligible participant in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted must not
represent more than 10% of the nominal amount of all the
issued shares of the Company (the “10% Limit”) as at the
date on which trading in the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange first commenced. The Company may
seek approval from its shareholders in a general meeting
to refresh the 10% Limit at any time in accordance with
the Listing Rules. The maximum number of unexercised
share options currently permitted to be granted under the
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. B IR EEHE (|
(a) Scheme (Continued) (a) 5H8(&E)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, are subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is a proposed
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date of the
offer of the grant. The grant of share options is effective
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the share options, which must be a
trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the share options; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 8 October 2003.

MAARES  THARRNETERRY
REZSBZEMBBEALTERHRBRE
AEBIUFITES (TEERFBRE
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JIREzBESEEREREZAH (X
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As a result of the rights issue completed in March 2011,
adjustments in the share option exercise price and the
number of shares in the options outstanding are required
to be made under the terms of the Share Option Scheme
in accordance with Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules and
a supplementary guidance issued by the Stock Exchange
on 5 September 2005. The calculation of the adjustments
in respect of all the existing share options granted by the
Company had been performed in accordance with the
regulatory rule and guidance, and reviewed and confirmed by
external professional persons pursuant to Rule 17.03(13) of
the Listing Rules. The key summary of related adjustments
had been announced by the Company on 23 March 2011.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. BRESE (@)
(b) Options granted (b) BREZERE
Summary of the share options granted is as follows: REOZEBRESZAOT :
(i) Movements in share options (i) BREz2H
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-ZF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Number of share options BREEE
At beginning of the year FAER 13,300,000 =
Adjustment for rights issue (Note) MR B2 RE (M) 3,131,580 =
Granted 2R 32,000,000 19,000,000
Exercised BT (16,431,580) (5,700,000)
At end of the year FAREER 32,000,000 13,300,000
Note: Htaz:

AMBRERER-"Z——F=ARRK
RAAARBREFET 2RRETEER
MARTERREHE ESRE LHRA
%#17.03(13) RRBEXFIR—ZSZTHF I
AREAZEZHRIESIREMELFE -
EXNFHEERERERREMEL
ZHRAREXCBTEERRES > LR
B EHRAIZE17.03(13) KR ELIEH
EANLTBERRBR - AR _E——F
Z A=+ =HRARERES B A o
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Options granted (Continued)
(ii) Details of the share options granted and the share
options outstanding as at 30 June 2011 are as

30. BRESE @)
(b) Rz B RAE (8

(i) W=B——FXA=TADEH
R AT 2 BREREDOT -

follows:
Number of share options
EREHRA
As at 30 As at 30
Grant date Exercise price  Exercisable period June 2010 Granted Lasped  Cancelled  Adjusted  Exercised  June 2011
REAH iR TRER R=B-2% b4 b3 s EE] CifE R=B--%
AA=TH AB=TH
18 May 2010 HK$0.48 18 May 2010 - 5,700,000 - - - 3,131,580  (8,831,580) -
“E-%% 04887 17 May 2013
TATNA “E-FERATNA-
“E2-ZERRTLA
26 May 2010 HK$0.422 26 May 2010 - 7,600,000 - - - - (7,600,000) -
“E-%% 042257 25 May 2013
i)zl ZE-EFRRZTRA-
“E--FRfA-1EA
13 June 2011 HK$0.365 13 June 2011 - - 32,000,000 - - - - 32,000,000
ZE--ERATZH 036587 12 June 2013
“E--£5Bt=H
“E-ZEXRBTZA
13,300,000 32,000,000 - - 3,131,580  (16,431,580) 32,000,000

The average fair value of the share options granted during
the year is HK$0.063 each. Options were priced using
the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. As it requires
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share prices, changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
of the share prices of the Company over a period that is
equal to the expected life before the grant date.

The vesting period of the share options is from the date
of grant until the commencement of the exercise period.
The share options would be fully exercisable from the

commencement of the exercise period.

REARHNBRELAABERFY
F1%0.0638 7T - BRER A D= —
FEANNEEEEEAEE -BE
ERBASETBNRER  BERE
BRNKEMNT TEHABRKNEE
AREAZEQABEAMG -

REREREREAATAE-—REBA
ROERNVELRIETE  EREH
BHIATAITRHI 1) o

BRENGEBHARE 2B B
BEETEHRG - BRERTESRR
% ALLEEATRE
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Options granted (Continued)
The fair value of the share options granted in the year as
determined by using the Black-Scholes valuation model
was approximately HK$2,031,456 (2010: HK$1,369,975) of
which approximately HK$2,031,456 (2010: HK$1,369,975)
was recognised in the profit or loss for the year.

31. NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
The calculation of net asset value is based on the net asset
value of the Group as at 30 June 2011 of HK$414,088,439
(2010: HK$317,398,875) and on the number of 591,169,846
(2010: 315,082,177) ordinary shares in issue as at 30 June
2011.
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30. BRESE (@)

31.

(b) B ZBR#E (&)
RERNFHBREN A ABEUR DR —&F
AT EEENRE - 892,031,45678
T (ZE—FF :1,369,9758T) '
2,031,456/ T (=2 — 2 : 1,369,975
BRT)RFRAEREBEZAER -

BREEFE
BREEFENDREFAEER_Z——F X
B=1+B2&E${E414,088,439/8 T (=T —
T 317,398,875 L) RIN=F——F <A
=+ HERTEEKEAE591,169,846/% (=&
—Z 4 :315,082,177/R) T & -
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

32. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to those disclosed in other sections of the

financial statements’ the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties and connected parties

during the year:

Tripod Management Limited
(“Tripod”)
Investment management
fee paid

Quidam
Interest income from

Orbrich Finance Group Limited
(“Orbrich Finance”)

Interest income from

Fortel Solutions Limited
Professional service income
Disposal of motor vehicle

China Private Equity Investment
Holdings Limited
Professional service income

Athens Capital Limited
Professional service fees paid
Share issue expenses
Consultancy fee paid

CNI Securities Group Limited
Commission expenses

REKEEERARA A
(T&H]
BENRESEE

Quidam

R 2B A

Orbrich Finance Group Limited
(FOrbrich Finance )
FE WA

BRAKERQT
HERBWA

s
BRTERERERERLT
BB WA
ERRAERAT
EHERBH A

R BTHX

B ERRA

TR GTREFEEERA A
kA

2.AEALTRBAERS

(a) MREMBERRACSHERE  REAFEASR

T
2011

—E——F

Notes HK$
Kt BT
i 480,000

ii 800,000

iii -

iv 240,000
iv -
iv 720,000

v -—

V -

v 100,000

Vi 454,370
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2010

—z-=2f

HK$

BT

480,000

800,000

608,013

460,000
287,796

720,000

90,000
230,000
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32. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY 2.BEAEALTRBEERS (@)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties as at the end of

(b) BEHER HEELDNREZEHRN
T

the reporting period are as follows: G
2011 2010
—E2——F —E2-=2F
Notes HK$ HK$
HraF BT BT
Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan, BARZHITES
an executive director of the mEmEE ([HRELE]D
Company (“Mr. Chui”)
Amount due to FEAFFIE vii 1,686,834 698,300
Mr. Yau Chung Hong, KRB ZHITES
an executive director of the ERMEtE
Company (“Mr. Yau”) TExX%ED
Amount due to FE1$ 718 viii 535,584 403,584
Quidam Quidam
Loan advance to FRAE 23R i 10,000,000 10,000,000
Interest receivable from FE UL F 2. ii 800,000 1,600,000
Orbrich Finance Orbrich Finance
Loan advance to FTEB R iii - 220,000
Amount due from FEU R IE iii - 170,361
Amount due to FEA$ I8 iii 49,639 =
UCCTV UCCTV
Amount due from FE W Fk 18 ix 716,808 1,001,808
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

32. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

2. HAEALTRBAERS (®)

(c)

FTEEEBAEZHE

FENTEEBAESCME  ESREAM

management during the year was as follows: TEEEEBHREZHMESOT ¢
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short-term benefits EHER 2,394,000 2,792,065
Post-employment benefits BEERA 24,000 24,000
2,418,000 2,816,065

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
the above related party transactions were entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business on
normal commercial terms and were in accordance with
the terms of the arrangements governing the transactions
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to an investment management agreement
(“Agreement”) dated 17 May 2007 entered into between
the Company and Tripod, Tripod agreed to provide the
Company with investment management services (excluding
general administrative services) commencing on 17 May
2007. Pursuant to its terms, the Agreement is renewable
automatically for successive periods of two years each upon
expiry unless terminated by either the Company or Tripod
serving not less than 3 months’ prior notice in writing on the
other party. The Agreement was automatically renewed on
17 May 2011. Currently the monthly investment advisory fee
is the lesser of (i) HK$80,000; or (ii) 0.50% per annum of the
net asset value (“NAV”) of the Company as at the Valuation
Day (ie. the last dealing day of the Stock Exchange in each
calendar month or such other dealing day as considered
appropriate by the Board for the purpose of calculating the
NAV) of the immediately preceding calendar month on the
basis of the actual number of days in the relevant calendar
month over a year of 365 days.

(d)

ESRFTETHRAEZMEN2RESE
ZEARBRTSBELERE -

BYFHTESRA > LHRBEALZX
SRAKENREER BR-REBH
HRRETRBEEBEXS 2 HRKRTE
T MRXBHERDTEE  LEAFSELD
AIRERAVEBFE -

Bt -

(i) RBREFAQXFHESER-ZBZTLFRATL
ARy e REEZH= ([ZiHE] - &
EREHE-Z2ELFAATLtHERR
DNARHREEERE (—RITBRS
BROM) - RIBEGR  ZHEESRER
BREDHEAWE  EXQFIRPETE
HEBRHKFTIR=ER2ELEEBH
FHUKLE - ZHBEER=—F——F50A
TEtREREN BB AREERE
#3(1)80,00058 7t ; = (ii) XA AEE/E A B9
ERBFBRUSFI65BMMHER (A1E
BERARBRXFNRERZ ERHESS
EEESTHEEEFENRZA) LNEE
FE(TEEZFEE]D 850.50%: & > K
REERE -
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32. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) Notes: (Continued)

2. AEALTRBAERS (®)

(d) msE: (&)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The Group had 18.25% equity interest in Quidam at 30 June
2011. The term loan is unsecured, bears interest at 8% per

annum and repayable on demand.

The Group had 18.25% equity interest in Quidam which holds
84% equity interest in Orbrich Finance at 30 June 2011. The
loan is unsecured and interest-free (2010: 8% per annum).
The amount due was fully settled during the year ended 30
June 2011.

Mr. Chui had beneficial interests in these companies.
Professional service income from these companies was

charged at a negotiated value.

Mr. Yau had beneficial interests in that company until 6 May
2011.

Mr. Yau had beneficial interests in these companies. The
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

The amount due to Mr. Chui is unsecured, interest—free and

repayable on demand.

The amount due to Mr. Yau is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

The Group had 20% equity interest in UCCTV as at 30
June 2011. The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.
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(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

R-ZB——FXA=+H AEEREE
Quidamz18.25% fE - EHE R B &
HHE BREFRBEFTERERERE
\%o

R-ZEBE——EXA=1H XEEEHE
QuidamZ18.25%% & » M Quidam#*H
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BE) - BEBREEREBEZE=—Z——FA
STALFEEHERE-

BRELEBEZE LA 2R - WZELF
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EEEEE-FE-——FHARBLERZ
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ERLBEREZSERR2BE - %FE
REREER  RERAREREE -
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33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33.

The Group as lessee
The Group leases its offices under operating lease
arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

RERW AR
AEEEREEA
RESEAVLZH AEEEAEETHAZ -

REFE B AERBER T HEE R < T T #HE
RERNERR 2 RERSEENT :

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —F R 1,405,920 1,100,000
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEELF (BRERWME) 1,405,920 =
2,811,840 1,100,000
34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 4. KHEE

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had pledged the following assets
to secure the finance leases, debenture issued by the Company
and the margin payables:

R-ZZB-——FXA=1H  AEEERTIE
EEAEALARERN IRTEESREN
RETZER

2011 2010

—E——F —ZE-ZF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Plant and equipment (Note 16) W= K& & (KaE16) 77,376 451,269
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEBRRERANEEZ

(Note 20) MK EE (#aE20) 161,592,136 56,632,226

161,669,512 57,083,495
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

The Company and Longlife have jointly entered into a
tenancy agreement for the lease of office premises for a
term of three years from 5 July 2010 to 4 July 2013. As
at 30 June 2011, the maximium rental liabilities of the
Company due to default of rental payment of Longlife
would be HK$2,811,840 (2010: Nil).

On 16 May 2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Subsidiary”) jointly entered into an
exclusivity and escrow agreement (the “Escrow
Agreement”) with another investor (collectively, the
“Investors”). The Escrow Agreement was entered into with
the existing investor, and the Joint and Several Provisional
Liquidators (the “Provisional Liquidators”) of 3D-GOLD
Jewellery Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange and formerly known as Hang Fung Gold
Technology Limited, stock code: 870, provisional liquidator
appointed) (“3D-GOLD).

Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, upon payment of an
earnest money in an aggregate sum of HK$20,000,000 (of
which HK$5,000,000 is non-refundable and payable upon
signing of the Escrow Agreement) by stages and in equal
share by the Investors, 3D-GOLD and the Provisional
Liquidators undertake to give the exclusivity to negotiate
with 3D-GOLD and the Provisional Liquidator in relation to
the investment for a controlling interest in 3D-GOLD, which
may form part of the resumption proposal for 3D-GOLD up
to 31 December 2011. As at 30 June 2011, the Subsidiary
has paid its share, i.e. HK$2,500,000 of the HK$5,000,000
non-refundable deposit. The remaining HK$7,500,000,
which is payable upon fulfilment of certain conditions, is
guaranteed by the Company.
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35. RAE

(a)

(b)
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BE-ZZE—=-FtHAMNAIL  BH=F-
RZB——FXA=+H A2 WEEH
HEEXHEREMEEZRSHEE
£%52,811,8408 T (= F—FF : ) o

REZZBE——FHATAB  ARFA-—FZ
EWBLR [ZMBLAR)HES -—RE
E(RBAIREADHBHITEART
B (EEHR] - TEHRIER
BREAURESEZEHREZRERL T
(REEXFr b ATBEEEXNEAR
DR BRHRIE870) ([£ZEE]) Wt
BRERREERA TREBEAL R
& e

RIETXEDHE REAEIRBRRERS
B £ %% 4 20,000,000/ T (&
5,000,0005% JT 7 AT 3R B 40 2 R 25 5T 7E
EMBERIMT) NHAZSE TUESE
B HeZERBREERARHKE
ERESZEERERZCIRE  ZREAS
ZEEMERN M BRA=-ZT——
F+-A=+—-HB-R=F——F~A
=1tH  ZHMBLATGENERARERS
5,000,0005% 7T 2 13 582,500,00058 7t © £k
£47,500,000/8 TIE R LEKGHFEERFE
S = P NN -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR mRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

36. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

37

As at the date of this report, HK$8,000,000 of the
receivables from the purchasers of King Alliance and

(a)

Winwide as set out in note 21 has been settled.

Pursuant to the placement agreement dated 9 June 2011
and an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 12 August 2011, placement of
250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each was issued at
a price of HK$0.3 per share on 23 August 2011.

(c) On 9 September 2011, the Group has signed a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of its entire interest in UCCTV. The consideration

was approximately HK$38,000,000.

On 15 September 2011, the Group has signed a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of its entire interest in IIN Network. The
consideration was approximately HK$32,000,000.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employee’s basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of approximately HK$55,718 (2010: HK$51,220) represents
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group in respect
of the current financial year.

36. FEHREHE

37

R & B 8 M sE21% BT & 2 FE WK
King Alliance&WinwideE = 2 7 18 &
38 #68,000,0007T E £ 5 ©

(a)

BRE-Z-——FXANEZEREHBER
“E SN NARTZRETZRRER
RELBBEBARE N=_T——F
NB=+=H - 250,000,000 & i HE &
0.18 T 2 & B RDIZFTR0.38 T 2ER
BEREHT -

(b)

REZZB——FNANE  AEEHEBVE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

38. XA MR F

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment BERRE 1,312,187 516,365
Interests in subsidiaries N IERNGIPA - 163 156
1,312,350 516,521
Current assets RBEE
Available-for-sale investments nEHERE 38,000,000 32,695,740
Financial assets at fair value ERAAERKREERA
through profit or loss EECHKEE 32,932,671 15,411,101
Prepayments, deposits and BNARE - RER
other receivables H {th fE W 7R 18 2,372,631 1,556,884
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK BT B 2 B FR IR 225,355,922 147,743,433
Amount due from an investee EWEZRE QAR
company 716,808 1,001,808
Bank balances IRITHEER 14,377,890 15,117,850
313,755,922 213,526,816
Current liabilities TEEE
Other payables and accruals HtEMARERESTER 18,189,603 5,166,479
Amounts due to directors ENFESRE 1,686,831 698,298
Debentures BERE - 1,000,000
19,876,434 6,864,777
Net current assets REBEEEER 293,879,488 206,662,039
295,191,838 207,178,560
Capital and reserves BEARAR A
Share capital [N 59,116,985 31,508,218
Reserves 1 236,074,853 175,670,342
Total equity attributable to RATREFEA
equity holders of the Company (L fE s 5 295,191,838 207,178,560

100 CAPITAL VC LIMITED B #5845 FR 2 ]
Annual Report 2010/11 £ &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR mRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

39. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 39. X QA f#EE
Investment
Share Share option  revaluation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
R EE BRERE REERRE RitERE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT B BT
At 1 July 2009 RZEENELA-H 220,557,290 - 4,101,760 (66,906,246) 157,752,804
Profit and total recognised income FEERFIRCHEIANGAR
for the year - - - 9,448,811 9,448,811
Gain on fair value changes of available- Tt HERE
for-sale investments (Note 19) DAEEB BRI (H719) - - (1,406,020 - (1,406,020)
Share option scheme (Note 29(c)): BBt (MZ290)):
- value of service -R¥%EE - 1,369,976 = - 1,369,976
- proceeds from share issued -BRIRHEE 1,881,000 = - = 1,881,000
- transfer to share premium -BRARNDEE 116,917 (116,917) = - =
Issue of ordinary shares by placing NBRELRABTERR
(Note 29(b)) (Wi29(b) 7,218,400 . . - 7218400
Share issue expenses ROBITER (594,629) - - - (594,629)
At 30 June 2010 and at 1 July 2010 R-E-ZFXA=1HR
A\=Z-ZEtA-H 229,178,978 1,253,059 2,695,740 (57,457,435) 175,670,342
Loss and total recognised expenses AEEFEREBAZ LA
for the year - - S (594213 (5914213)
Gain on fair value changes of THEEREZAAEZHER
available-for-sale investments (H1EE19)
(Note 19) - - 5,304,260 - 5,304,260
Share option scheme (Note 29(d)): Bl (Hi290)
- value of service -BBEE - 2,031,456 - - 2,031,456
- proceeds from share issued -BIRAEH 4,299,047 - = = 4,299,047
- transfer to share premium -ERARRAEE 1,253,059 (1,253,059) = = =
Issue of ordinary shares by rights issue DERARBTEBR
(Note 29(f) (Wi229(0) 38,949,218 - - - 38049218
Issue of ordinary shares by placing NRERRBTERR
(Note 29(¢)) (W:229(e) 16,227,500 - - - 16,227,500
Share issue expenses ROBTER (492,757) - - = (492,757)
At 30 June 2011 RZE-——-£xB=1H 289,415,045 2,031,456 8,000,000 (63,371,648) 236,074,853
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F<A=THIFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. T EMBE QA
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as at R-ZEBE——FXA=1+H X2AME
30 June 2011 are as follows: E2EEMBLARZFENOT ¢
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued share of equity
registration and fully paid attributable to
Class of and operations share capital the Company
Name shares held  FfRL,/ BETRAR NGl 3 Principal activities
A% FERMERN BLEREXBH BRRAEE REBDL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
¢ %
CNI Finance Limited Ordinary Hong Kong HK$100 100% - Investment holding
EER & 1007 7T REZR
Concolor Holdings Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
EER Hong Kong (E REER
RERLHE /BB
Richbird Holdings Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
EER Hong Kong 127 REZER
RERLHE/BA
Kendervon Profit Inc. Ordinary British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
EER Hong Kong 1% REER
RERLHE/BA
Ethnocentric Investment Ordinary British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited EBR Hong Kong 1% REZER
RERLHE /BB
CNI Capital Limited Ordinary Hong Kong HK$3 - 100% Investments of listed
BER B 3BT securities in Hong Kong
RENEBZLMES
Kenabell Trading Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
LRk Hong Kong (EVT REER
RERLHE /BA
Million Full Assets Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
BBER Hong Kong 157 REER
RERLEE/BE
Canterberry Investments Limited  Ordinary British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Dormant
EBR Hong Kong 127 Tmex
RERLHE /S
Huge Energy Holdings Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
EER Hong Kong 127 REER
RERLHE /A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2011 &2 —F——4F < A=THIFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

41. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform

with the current year’s presentation.

40.

41.

FENBE AR @E)
TRAMAATNEESRAIEYEAEEES
REEZHBLR - BESRBHHEMKBEL
AEfE eSHEREEERAE -

RELRNFERNEAER - HERBLREER
EME#RIT2EHES -

kBB F
ETUBHFETENSE  UHEAFEZ
2HAR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
R

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited

financial statements, is set out as follows:

FEEREBEERVBBRR2BELAMBRFEZ
CH#XE EEREEHEHINT :

RESULTS e
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
“E-—-§ CZEZ-TF CZETNE CZEENF CZEZtHE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT BT
(Restated)*  (Restated)*  (Restated)*  (Restated)*
(E50)* (E5)* (&%)~ (E50)*
Turnover EEL ] (984,164) 23,255,411 (2,935,787) 445,198 11,405,807
Profit (loss) before tax BB AER (F8) 23,371,420 35,508,758 (2,352,846) (22,999,435) 1,127,349
Income tax Fria - 461,433 - (443250)  (136,884)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable APEIRERFE A
to equity holders of the Company EEEEREF (BR) 23,371,420 35,970,191 (2,352,846) (23,442,685) 990,465
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ZE-—-F ZE-ZTF ZEBThE ZTTINE C—EFLHF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Total assets BEE 479,416,089 355,964,956 284,904,665 262,885,489 153,000,035
Total liabilities waE (65,327,650) (38,566,081) (22,967,467) (32,015,075) (35,697,961)
Total equity attributable to equity EATRERFEA
holders of the Company FElEER AR 414,088,439 317,398,875 261,937,198 230,870,414 117,302,074

*

Reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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